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201 7 Company Brief

afarge Cement Jordan is one of the largest and oldest
industrial companies in Jordan, founded in 1951 as a
public shareholding company.

The company has two plants, one in Fuhais and one in Rashadeya.
Production Capacity of the company is (4) million tons.

In 1998, LafargeHolcim Group entered the Jordanian market
by acquiring shares in Jordan Cement Factories
Company. The Group currently owns (50.3%).

Construction industry leader and preferred solution provider in
Jordan creating value for customers and stakeholders.

Mission

Preferred construction solution provider with customers’
excellence, embedded health & safety culture, never losing sight
of environmental sustainability, focusing on being an employer of
choice and building a dynamic organization maximizing returns
to all stakeholders.
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Values

Customers
Customer centric
Easy to deal with
Keep promises
Provide solutions

Results

Timely Decision Making
Out of the Box Solutions
Optimization

Respecting Deadlines
Accuracy

Business Acumen

Integrity
Transparency
Confidentiality
Openness & Honesty
Fairness
Compliance
Diligence

Sustainability

Consistency

Creativity & Innovation

Preserve Environment for Future Generations

People

Health & Safety behavior
Engagement

Empowerment & Delegation
Lead by Example
Professionalism & Excellence
Uncompromising

Loyalty

Team Work

Trust

Considerate

Confidentiality

Ownership

Dedication

Proactive Communication
Courage

Constructive feedback
Diversity & Inclusion

People Development
Objectivity

Flexibility & Speed

Diligence

Performance Culture
Business Partnering
Openness &Transparency
Responsibility & Accountability
Care

Discipline & Commitment
Positive Attitude
Persistence & Perseverance
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Letter From the Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of myself and members of the Board
of Directors, | would like to present to you Lafarge
Cement Jordan 66th Annual Report which addresses
the Company’s results in 2017 and explains the main
factors that has led to these results.

2017 was a year filled with challenges due to market
surplus conditions where supply exceeds 9 million tons
of cement and consumption is limited to 4 million tons,
in addition to market price fluctuation with a decreasing
trend.

As you all know, the company is still operating below its
production capacity give market surplus which led us to
stopping all production activities in Fuhais plant since
2013 and suspending grinding and packing activities
since 2016 to reduce variable costs which bearing the
related fixed costs and the excessive environmental
legal compensations.

Despitethese exceptional circumstancesand challenges,
the Company achieved further cost reduction measures
and continued on offering new solutions and high
quality products to its customers while improving health
& safety measures within its operations. This was also
compiled with Corporate Social Responsibility activities
and efforts to positively contribute to where we operate.
To conclude, allow me on behalf of the Board of
Directors to express our full confidence that the
Company’s management will be able to find solutions
to the challenges we are facing which will ensure the
Company’s competitiveness in near future.

I also would like to express my appreciation and gratitude
to our valuable shareholders and loyal customers and
convey my acknowledgement to those of our employees
who are keen and exerting their best efforts for the
sustainability of our organization.

Chairman
Grant Earnshaw

et
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Letter from Country Chief
Executive Officer

Respected Shareholders of Lafarge Cement Jordan,

Lafarge Cement Jordan annual results reflect a net loss
of JD 33.3 million, compared to a net loss of JD 1.7
million in prior year, as a direct result of the local market
conditions in addition to the decisions to impair the
non operating production line in Rashadeya plant, as
well as the provision taken to cover the end of service
compensation for our surplus employees.

The key contributor to the loss was the decrease in
our sales volume by 6.7% due to decline in market
consumption given overall slow-down along with lower
spending on Mega Infrastructure projects. This was
coupled with market price fluctuations and decrease in
cement prices due to competitive pressures as of mid
year. The company is still facing the increasing trend
of environmental legal cases in Fuhais reaching 1876
in various court stages at end of 2017, in addition to
incurring the ongoing fixed cost of current excess labor.
Despite these difficulties, the Company’s management
has been able to tackle many priorities and develop
various strategies towards achieving improved and
sustainable results through the execution of various
programs and initiatives, namely;

1. Health & Safety

The Company has developed a strategic improvement
plan with key priorities under the direct supervision of
the top management team and with direct involvement
of teams in all our sites to ensure proper and timely
execution. We launched Health and safety training
programs covering both employees and contractors
aimed at improving driving skills and reducing road
accidents. We reinforced proper safety behaviors
through conducting activities and field visits to
enhance how we evaluate risks within our operations.
The company continued to reinforce consequence
management as a tool to achieve desired discipline in
all sites while reinforcing positive behaviors.

2. Cost Reduction

The Company continued its efforts to implement radical
solutions related to its presence in Fuhais, following the
proposed master plan and related preliminary studies
submitted to the Municipality, for which we are still
seeking the approval for land rezoning. We maintained
our focus on costs, by revising annual increases and
optimizing administrative and general expenses. We
are still following up on the implementation of the solar
power project, which is delayed due to financial closure.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3. Commercial Transformation:

The Company continued to execute projects and
initiatives that were developed as part of its commercial
transformation plan launched back in 2016, which
supported to a certain extent market prices and
customer’s loyalty in light of current market challenges.
We also developed new solutions to serve our customer
needs and loading procedures at the Rashadiya plant
are improving. Moreover, a new distribution center
was launched in Zarga to serve our customers better
especially those in Amman and in Northern areas.

4. Human Resource Development:

We continued to exert dedicated efforts to reinforce
a positive work environment to drive better results
in a transparent and open manner while conducting
various trainings in health and safety and other topics
(we completed 1225 training days in 2017). This was
reinforced with monthly town hall meetings where we
share updates with employees at all sites, cover and
clarify their concerns and tap into their ideas and
suggestions. Another important building block related
to this new environment creation was the launch of a
new batch of 15 HR policies to reinforce our values.
Most importantly was the finalization of our future target
organization and the selection of suitable talents that
can assume the various roles & positions based on
their qualifications & capabilities in a fair and objective
manner.
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5. Sustainable Development:

The Company renewed its strategic partnership
with Injaz organization to promote health and safety
awareness among school students reaching out for
more than 2100 Students in 22 schools throughout
Jordan in 2017. The company also signed an MQOU
with “Falak Tayeb” organization to provide counseling
for job seekers in Tafilah governorate to help them find
appropriate employment opportunities based on their
educational and professional qualifications; the center
is expected to start its operations within 2018. Last but
not least we inaugurated many projects in Bseira and
Qadeseya communities in continuation of our support to
both municipalities and local communities.

Ladies and gentlemen,

We shall endeavor to exert our utmost sincere efforts
towards improving the company results and assuring its
future sustainability; relying on our values, building upon
our positive evolution in Health & Safety, developing
our human capital, capitalizing on our cultural and
commercial transformations along with our ability to
strengthen our industrial operations, in order to deliver
the highest standards of performance.

Finally I wish to extend my gratitude and recognition to
our customers for their trust, to our teams in Lafarge
Jordan whom contributed towards achieved results with
dedication and ownership, and to our shareholders for
your continued trust and support in the management in
this critical moment of our transformation journey.

Future Plans Outlook

Respected Shareholders,

The company will continue to implement various
programs and projects within 2018 to achieve the
following priorities;

Health and Safety:

The company will continue its focus on Road Safety for all
of its employees, contractors, transporters and partners
with no exception. Training programs will continue to be
offered to increase employees’ awareness and capabilities
along with the revision of our mobile equipment and
circulation plans in all of our locations to ensure ‘No Harm
on site”. Moreover, we shall focus on “Health Standard”
primarily on emergency preparedness.

Commercial Transformation:

We shall accelerate the development of innovative
products and solutions to meet our customer needs
while reaching excellence in services provided to
reinforce our historical leadership position in the
construction sector and capitalizing on our affiliation
with LafargeHolcim Group.
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Cost Optimization

We will endeavor to improve the efficiency of our
operations while providing safe disposal of waste and
relying on renewal and alternative energy sources
with the implementation of the solar power project in
Rashadeya. We will further optimize our fixed costs in
order to improve our financial results including those
related to surplus employees. We shall exert all efforts
to reach a permanent and sustainable solution to our
presence in Fuhais.

Human Capital Development:

We shall reach our target organization while reinforcing
the capabilities of our teams to create a strong
performance environment with the relevant positive
behavior to achieve our optimal performance with the
foundation of a unified human resource system that
meets employees aspirations and which is in line with
the best global practices.

Sustainable Development:

We shall reinforce our support to our local communities
capitalizing on our corporate sustainability ambitions to
maintain strong and positive mutual relations with our
stakeholders while protecting the environment through
usage of alternative and renewable resources. We shall
launch the career counseling center to enhance youth
opportunities in finding suitable jobs throughout the
country.

Chief Executive Officer
Amr Reda

S
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Members of Board of Directors

A\

Amr Reda - Yaser Akroush

1

Fawzi Al-Hyasat Omar Bdair Samaan Samaan

Horia Adrian

e Chairman of the Board of Directors and LafargeHolcim representative until 23/1/2017

e Holder of Bachelor and Master degrees in Mechanical Engineering from Romania and MBA from
South Korea.

¢ Appointed as Area Manager Middle East in 2015.

e Joined Holcim in 2000 as Project Manager in Romania then as Commercial Director of Holcim
Azerbaijan in 2004.

¢ Held several positions in Russia and Switzerland

e Started his career with Daewoo Mangalia Heavy Industry in South Korea.

Grant Earnshaw

e Chairman of the Board of Directors and LafargeHolcim representative as of 23/1/2017.

 Holder of Postgraduate Diploma in Business Administration and Building & Civil Engineering Degree from UK.
¢ Appointed as Area Manager Middle East and North Africa in 2016.

e Appointed as Senior VP & Head of Integration for LafargeHolcim from 2014 until 2016.

e Chief Executive Officer for Lafarge Irag from 2012 to 2014.

¢ Joined Lafarge Group in 1999 and held senior positions.
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Ahmad Heshmat

¢ Deputy Chairman of the Board and LafargeHolcim representative as of 22/7/2008

e Holder of BS in Architectural Engineering, Diploma in Financial Management —Egypt, and Certificate
in Business Management-Switzerland

e Worked at leading International Companies in Egypt and Arab Gulf, joined Orascom in 1998 and held
several positions in it.

¢ Joined Lafarge in 2008, and was appointed as Regional President for Cement Division’s operations in
the Middle East and Pakistan.

Amr Reda

e Member of the Board and LafargeHolcim representative as of 30/7/2015.

¢ Holder of Bachelor degrees in Accounting from Cairo University and in Business Administration from
the American University in Cairo as well as an MBA from the American University in Cairo.

e Started his career in 1990 at the Arab Bank in Egypt, and then became Finance Manager at (3M) and
Chief Financial Officer and General Controller at Heineken Egypt.

¢ Joined Lafarge as Chief Financial Officer in Pakistan in 2006 then Regional Business Controller for the
Middle East and Pakistan. In 2012 he was appointed as CEO for Lafarge Pakistan.

¢ |[n 2015 he was appointed as Country CEO for Lafarge Jordan.

e Has many contributions in international conventions and community service.

Yaser Akroush

¢ Member of the Board and representative of Social Security Corporation as of 1/5/2017.

¢ Held several positions in Social Security Corporation since 1990.

e Representative and General Manager of Jordan Tanning Co.

e Member of the Board of Directors at a number of Jordanian companies and societies.

¢ Holder of Bachelor degrees in Political Economy and Planning from Damascus University.

Fawzi Al-Hiasat

¢ Member of the Board and representative of Social Security Corporation as of 1/5/2017.

¢ Director and General Manager of Social Security Corporation Salt and North Amman Branches from
1995 until 2011.

¢ Held several positions in Social Security Corporation since 1987.

® Representative of the Social Security Corporation in many board committees.

e Chairman and member of several committees in Social Security Corporation.

e Holder of Bachelor degrees in Management Science from Yarmouk University.
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Omar Bdair

* Member of the Board and representative of the private sector as of 8/2/2006.

e Holder of M.A degree in Civil Engineering- USA.

¢ Worked as Chairman of Arabian Technical Construction Co. and Jordan Cement Company.
* Member of the Board of Directors at a number of Jordanian companies and societies.

Samaan Samaan

* Member of the Board as of 13/7/2017.

® Representative of Arab Concrete Supply Company until 13/7/2017.

* General Manager for Lafarge Concrete Jordan as of 1/9/2014.

e Country Finance, Control and IT VP until 1/9/2014.

¢ Joined Lafarge in 2005 and held several positions in Jordan.

e Holder of BA Degree in Accounting from University of Jordan.

e Certified Public Accountant (CPA) from USA and member of Jordanian Association of Certified
Accountants (JACPA).

Saoud Nsairat

* Member of the Board and Social Security Investment Fund representative until 1/5/2017.
¢ Air Force Commander in Royal Jordanian Air Force from 1999 to 2002.

¢ Vice Chairman for the Joints Chief of Staff in Royal Jordanian Army from 2002 to 2004.

e Minister of Transport from 2004 to 2007.

e Chairman of the Board in various Jordanian authorities and companies.

e Holder of Master’s Degree in Political Science from Mutah University.

e Holder of different Air Force certificates.

Sameer Shalan

* Member of the Board and representative of Rama for Investment & Savings Co. until 1/5/2017.
¢ Director of Internal Control Department at Social Security Corporation since 2012

¢ Director of Finance and Administration at Rama for Investment & Saving Co.

¢ Held several positions in Finance and Internal Control in local and regional institutions.

¢ Participated in various committees in local institutions.

* Representative of the Social Security Corporation in many Board committees.
e Holder of Bachelor degree in Accounting from Jordan University.
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Organizational Chart of the Company’s Executive Committee

Country CEO
Amr Reda

Country Chief Country Human Rashadeya Plant

GM Readymix Jordan HeI;IgE:)rflc[l)?(l)(glf:éﬁ;nt Resources Vice President Manager

*Samaan Samaan Ala’a Luma **Abdelfattah
Abu Ameereh Al-Abdallat Al Muhtaseb

*  Mr. Samaan SAMAAN has became in charge of managing the commercial function (Sales & Marketing) during the
period from 01/03/2016 to 30/04/2018.
** Rashadeya Plant Manager - Abdelfattah Al Muhtaseb was appointed as a member of the Country EXCOM as of 01/06/2017.

Organization Structure for the Subsidiary Company
(Lafarge Concrete Jordan)

( GM Readymix Jordan ]
Samaan Samaan

Finance Manager Supply Chain Manager
Mohammad Mishal Amjad Ismail

M
~
/
/
/

Business Development .
Performance & South Area Quality Manager

Manager .
Issa Fakhouri Ibrahim Khawaldeh

North & East Area Manager Human Resources Manager
Bashar Alawneh Vacant

Sales & Key Accounts & .
Central Jordan Area Manager Health Safety & Environment

Sameer Aloul Ghassan Qunash

g

\ Marketing & Sales Support
Karim Aloul

Maintenance Manager /
Ahmad Qattan

o / o /

e Sameer Aloul, Issa Fakhouri, Bashar Alawneh, Karim Aloul were appointed to the position on 01/09/2017.
e Amijad Ismail was hired on 01/08/2017.
e Ahmad Qattan and Mohammad Mishal were appointed on 01/09/2017.
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Executive Committee

Amr Reda

¢ Holder of Bachelor degrees in Accounting from Cairo University and in Business Administration from the American University
in Cairo as well as an MBA from the American University in Cairo.

e Started his career in 1990 at the Arab Bank in Egypt, and then became Finance Manager at (3M) and Chief Financial Officer
and General Controller at Heineken Egypt.

¢ Joined Lafarge as Chief Financial Officer in Pakistan in 2006 then Regional Business Controller for the Middle East and
Pakistan. In 2012 he was appointed as CEO for Lafarge Pakistan.

¢ In 2015 he was appointed as Country CEO for Lafarge Jordan.

e Has many contributions in international conventions and community service.

Samaan Samaan

¢ General Manager for Lafarge Concrete Jordan as of 1st September 2014.

e Holder of BA Degree in Accounting - University of Jordan.

e Certified Public Accountant (CPA) from USA and member of Jordanian Association of Certified Accountants (JACPA).
e Country Finance, Control and IT VP until 1/9/2014.

e Joined Lafarge in 2005 and held several positions in Finance in Jordan.

Luma Al-Abdallat

e Country Human Resources Vice President.
¢ Holder of Bachelor degree in Industrial Engineering, and Masters in International Human Resources Management.
¢ Held several positions in the field of management consulting and organizational development and human resources consulting in Jordan.

¢ Joined Lafarge in 2006 and held several positions in Human Resources Management in Jordan.

Ala’a Abu Ameereh

e Country Chief Financial Officer.
¢ Holder of Bachelor degree in Accounting & Economics from Jordan University in 1994
e Started his professional career in 1994 and held diversified positions in Finance and Auditing.

¢ Joined Lafarge Group in 2006 and held several positions in Finance in Jordan.

Abdel-fattah Al-Muhtaseb

¢ Rashadya plant Manager as of 2016.
¢ Holder of Bachelor degree in Electromechanical Engineering from Al-Balga’ Applied Universityin 1996.
e Joined Lafarge Jordan in 1997 as Electrical Engineer at Fuhais Plant.

¢ Held several positions in project management and electrical maintenance in the company.
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Lafarge Cement Jordan was able to fulfill many priorities despite the difficult conditions
experienced during 2017, detailed as follows:-

Health & Safety

e Huge efforts invested in the strategic Health & Safety Improvement Plan in 2017:
- Road Safety: The Company collaborated with a global service provider to train 9 trainers on the behavior for drivers.
- Continue to focus on “H&S is my life style”: Many activities have been launched to promote this tagline (Football league,
Vision & blood testing, Health Assessments) and special focus on activities related to critical jobs.
- Consequence Management and Reward & Recognition Standards: implementation stated in 2017 to improve H&S

performance.

e Celebrated Global H&S Days for 2017, under a new slogan "Stop Unsafe Work": Several activities have been launched in all
company locations, with special focus on "Working At Height" activities starting from preparation phase to implementation.

Other activities covered "Risk Assessment" and inspection campaigns at different locations.

e “Care Index”: was launched to manage H&S, and to measure employees engagement & involvement in addition to effective
execution by looking into reporting (ideas, suggestions, near miss, unsafe conditions & inspection routs). It also measures the

execution efficiency for the actions resulted from different reporting channels.

e 47 events have been reported and one Loss Time Injury (LTI). As shown in the below table.

Lost Time Injuries for Employees & Contractors

0
I I I I I I I
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
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Environment

e The Company ensures its commitment to implement the principles of sustainable development by protecting the environmental
elements and applying the standards of continuous improvement in its various activities.

¢ To ensure safe and protective storage and handling of all petcoke activities in Rashadeya plant, a technical study have been
initiated to build a covered store.

e The Company continued to implement environmental monitoring programs to follow up the implementation of the highest
operational standards through monitoring the emissions from the different plant stacks; these measurements showed very low

emissions and it compliance with local and international environmental requirements.

e The Company implemented a program of daily monitoring of the ambient air quality by measuring the level of dust in different

locations around Rashadeya plant through a program carried out by a team from Balga University under supervision and follow
up by Ministry of Environment.

Industrial Performance

e |ndustrial performance at Rashadeya plant improved in 2017 as a result of increasing the use of coal and alternative fuels
compared to 2016.

e Rashadeya plant continued producing different types of cement with the highest quality and standards to contribute to
Company’s competitiveness.

e Clinker production lines at Fuhais plant are still suspended since 2013, while grinding, packing and all other plant activities
stopped in 2016.

Commercial Transformation
Sales:

e The Company strived to apply its sales strategy to maintain its customers’ loyalty and develop new sales leads, serving

customers in various segments including end users and major projects.

e Cement market witnessed drop in market prices and shrinking of demand in the second half of 2017.

Marketing:
¢ |n 2017 the Marketing Department has worked on developing a number of new products and innovative building solutions, as

well as working to improve the procedures for packing and loading stages in Rashadeya Plant.

The concrete lab was upgraded to become a product development and innovation center to support building solutions.

The Company participated in several events and conferences to promote it's product and services such as French week in

Amman, the Seventh international Jordanian Civil Engineering Conference, Renewable Energy Conference and others.

The Company conducted a series of product awareness sessions and on concrete roads for different sectors in construction sector

such as, (Jordanian Engineers Association, main office & Madaba, Irbid branches, Jordanian Construction Contractors Association).

e A new cement distribution center was inaugurated in Zarga, to serve customers in Amman and the Northren part of Jordan.
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Human Resources

Training & Development

Training & Development is considered one of the key elements for Lafarge Jordan to achieve its objectives in performance
improvement and cost reduction. The Annual Training and Development Plan of 2017 included a large segment of employees at
the different hieratical levels of the organization, focusing on health and safety as the first priority and overarching value as well
as improving the technical and non-technical competencies of employees and contractors in the training.

Health and Safety Training Programs:
e The company has launched "Health Program" in 2017 and as per the program requirements; the company’s doctor became
a certified “Occupational Health & Safety Specialist” that is accredited by Ministry of Labor.

¢ |n continuation for the program launched in 2015 and for the third year in a row, Lafarge Jordan continued to build on the
partnership with Al-Khaldi Hospital Training Center to train an additional number of employees from all company sites on "First
Aid, CPR and AED" in which trainees received a certificate of "Certified Heart Savers" that is accredited by the American Heart
Association (AHA). Moreover, refreshment training sessions have been conducted for a number of employees and contractors
at all company sites on Emergency Response Plan and Medical Emergency Response Plan. Several drills were carried out in
all company sites to ensure that all the employees have been well prepared for the different emergency cases.

Special focus on Road Safety to increase the competency of drivers. Nine employees were certified as “Drivers Trainers” by
attending “Smith System Driver Trainer Course” which focuses on the development of safe/defensive driving techniques. Upon
completion of the training program, the trainers evaluated all the drivers at all locations and cascaded their acquired skills and
techniques to their colleagues.

Specialized training programs:

e |IFE Program was kicked off for the first wave of Rashadeya Plant front line supervisors. This program focuses on frontline
supervisory competencies development by improving their skills in managing self, managing others and managing results. The
first phase of the program was completed successfully for the supervisors and their coaching managers. The following phases
will be completed during 2018. The program will also be launched for the target group in Ready-mix.

e A number of employees participated in many specialized industrial training programs provided by the group in multiple
manufacturing areas: Production, Process, Quality & Products, Maintenance, Energy ...etc.

e A number of employees participated in non-industrial specialized training programs in the different areas. Several awareness

training courses were carried out for employees in various fields: Information Technology and its Applications, Products, Legal
and Compliance, Finance for Non Finance, Leadership and Management Skills ...etc.
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Training Programs during 2017:

Serial Training Type Man Days

1 Health & Safety 800

2 Health & Safety for Contractors 175

3 Specialized industrial training programs 170

4 Information Technology and training programs using e-learning 11

5 Awareness Programs 24

6 Leadership & Management Skills 46
Total 1225

Human Resources Policies
In continuation for the “HR Policies Project” launched in Q4 2015, in which 40 HR policies were drafted, an additional 15
policies were validated in 2017, which makes the total number of validated policies 35 policies.

This project aims at laying the foundations for the management to organize the business, facilitate procedures and achieve
justice and equality by determining the rights and duties of the employees and the company.

Sustainable Development:

Despite the limited resources, the Company continued its contribution to support and develop the local communities around its
plants especially in Bseira and Qadesya in order to maintain the positive relationship with these communities, and to enhance
the role of municipalities and civil associations.

Main projects:

- Emergency room equipment for Qadesya medical centre
- Multipurpose hall in Bseira Municipality

- Second floor level at Bseira sports and cultural centre

- Sports field for Qadesya sports club.

e The Company continued providing in kind donations to municipalities through resources and vehicles especially in emergencies
and snow storms.

e The Company signed a MOU with “Falack Tayeb” as the first Career Counseling and training Centre in Tafila Governorate.

® |n order to contribute to deliver quality education in local schools, the Company renewed its partnership for the second year
with Injaz to launch an educational program to spread and raise awareness amongst youth in Jordan on Health & Safety. First
stage of this Awareness campaign was delivered by our volunteers during the semester of the year 2017 in different schools
using a booklet developed by Lafarge Jordan. The program was introduced to more than (2100) students all over the kingdom
in 2017.

Health & Safety Awareness Program
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Governance Report

A. Information and details related to implementing instructions and corporate
governance rules in the company:

Jordan Cement Factories and Subsidiary Company; are members in LafargeHolcim Group.

Jordan Cement Factories Company implements a set of policies that takes into account corporate governance, such as:
1. Procurement Palicy.

Compensation and Payroll Policy.

Code of Business Conduct.

Financial Authorization policy.

Credit Granting policy.

ok W

The Company has a global financial system (JDE) and prepares data, financial statements that comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The Company discloses with the Securities Commissions any information that affects the Company's results and financial position.
Despite the financial losses, The Company continued its contribution to support and develop the local communities around its
plants, in order to enhance the role of municipalities and civil associations. The Company applies Health and Safety standards
with a clear health and safety policy.

The Company produces high quality of cement and concrete products, according to the international standards and the quality
standards of LafargeHolcim Group.

The Company has a lean organizational structure, which takes into account the separation of roles and responsibilities to ensure
internal controls in all operations and procedures. It is also undertaking a complete revision of the future organizational structure

to meet the needs of the development in the local market.

B. Names of current and Independent board members:

“ Representatlve m Independent Independent

1- Grant Earnshaw Lafarge S.A

2- Ahmad Said Heshmat Lafarge S.A No Yes No Yes Yes No

3- Amr Ali Reda Lafarge S.A Yes No No Yes Yes No

4- Yaser Agel Akroush Social Security Corporation No Yes No Yes Yes No
R for | tment &

5- Fawzi Abdallah Al-Hiasat oo ror (nvesimen No Yes No Yes Yes No
Saving Company

6-0 “Moh d Ali”

mar O, ammed Al Private sector No Yes Yes No Yes No

Othman Bdeir

7- Samaan Kamel Samaan Personal Yes No No Yes Yes No

8- Saoud Ahmad Nsairat Social Security Corporation No Yes No Yes No Yes
R for | tment &

9- Sameer |brahim Shalan arT]a orinvestmen No Yes No Yes No Yes
Saving Company

10- Horia Adrian Lafarge S.A No Yes No Yes No Yes
Arab C te Suppl

11- Samaan Kamel Samaan el EaEis Sy Yes No No Yes No Yes
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C. Names of the legal representatives for the Board of Directors:
1. Lafarge SA (Non-Executive/ Not Independent)

2. Social Security Corporation (Non-Executive/ Not Independent)

3. Rama for Investment & Saving Company (Non-Executive/ Not Independent)

D. Executive Positions in the Company, held by the following employees:
Country CEO - Amr Ali Reda

Country CFO & Head Of Procurement — Alaa Abdul Hamid Abu Ameereh

Country Human Resource VP - Luma Ahmed Alabdallat

Lafarge Concrete Jordan GM - Samman Kamel Samman (Arab Concrete Supply Company)

Rashadeyah Plant Manager - Abd-el Fattah “Mohammed Amin “Abdel-Razzagq Muhtasib

E. Other Memberships held by Borad Of Directors in other Public Shareholding Companies:
1. Grant Earnshaw : NO
. Amr Ali Reda: NO
. Ahmad Said Heshmat Hasan: NO
. Samaan Kamel Yacoub Samaan: NO
. Omar ‘Mohammed Ali * Othman Bdeir : Yes
e Jordan Pipes Manufacturing

o b~ W N

e General Mining Company
6. Yaser Agel Akroush: NO
7. Fawzi Abdallah Al-Hiasat: NO

F. Company Corporate Governance Officer:
Country Internal Audit & Control Manager/ Issa Rabieh

G. Names of the Committees:

There is an Audit Committee and the Company is working on the establishment of permanent committees formed by the Board
of Directors (Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Governance Committee and Risk Management Committee) and to be
formed in accordance with the procedures set out in the Corporate Governance Guidelines before 30/4/2018.

H. Chairman and members of the Audit Committee, financial and accounting
qualifications and experience:

1- Omar “ Mohammed Ali ” Othman Bdeir Bdair (Chairman)
e Member of the Board and representative of the private sector as of 8/2/2006.
¢ Holder of M.A degree in Civil Engineering- USA.
e Worked as Chairman for Arabian Technical Construction Co. and Jordan Cement Company.
e Member of the Board of Directors at a number of Jordanian companies and societies.

2- Grant Earnshaw
e Chairman of the Board of Directors and Lafarge S.A representative as of 23/1/2017.
¢ Holder of Postgraduate Diploma in Business Administration and Building & Civil Engineering Degree from UK.
¢ Appointed as Area Manager Middle East and North Africa in 2016.
¢ Appointed as Senior VP & Head of Integration for Lafarge S.A from 2014 until 2016.
e Chief Executive Officer - Lafarge Iraq from 2012 to 2014.
¢ Joined Lafarge Group in 1999 and held senior positions.
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3- Fawzi Abdulla Al-Hiasat
e Member of the Board and representative of Social Security Corporation as of 1/5/2017.
¢ Director and General Manager of Social Security Corporation Salt and North Amman Branches
from 1995 until 2011.
¢ Held several positions at Social Security Corporation since 1987.
* Representative of the Social Security Corporation in many board committees.
e Chairman and member of several committees in Social Security Corporation
e Holder of Bachelor degrees in Management Science from Yarmouk University.

4- Yaser Aqel Akroush
e Member of the Board and representative of Social Security Corporation as of 1/5/2017.
¢ Held several positions in Social Security Corporation since 1990.
* Representative for social security corporation General Manager at Jordan Tanning Co.
¢ Member of the Board of Directors at a number of Jordanian companies and societies.
e Holder of Bachelor degrees in Political Economy and Planning from Damascus University, and

high diploma in philosophy from Jordanian University.

5- Samaan Kamel Samaan
e Holder of BA Degree in Accounting from University of Jordan.
e Certified Public Accountant (CPA) from USA and member of Jordanian Association
of Certified Public Accountants (JACPA).
¢ Joined Lafarge in 2005 and held several positions in Jordan.
e Country Finance, Control and IT VP until 1/9/2014.
e General Manager for Lafarge Concrete Jordan as of 1/9/2014

6- Ahmad Said Heshmat

¢ Deputy Chairman of the Board and Lafarge S.A representative as of 22/7/2008

e Holder of BS in Architectural Engineering, Diploma in Financial Management —Egypt, and
Certificate in Business Management-Switzerland

e Worked at leading International Companies in Egypt and Arab Gulf, joined Orascom in 1998
and held several positions in it.

¢ Joined Lafarge in 2008, and was appointed as Regional President for Cement Division’s
operations in the Middle East and Pakistan.

I. Chairman and Members for Other Committees:
The Company is working to rectify its status for other committees before 30/4/2018
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J. Number of meetings for other Committees during the year:
There were no meetings during the year for other committees because there were no such committees.
Four meeting for audit committee were held and the members were present:

Omar “ Mohammed Ali “ Othman Bdeir 4 meetings

Grant Earnshaw 4 meetings
Samaan Kamel Samaan 4 meetings
Sameer lbrahim Shalan 2 meetings
Saoud Ahmad Nsairat 2 meetings
Ahmad Said Heshmat 4 meetings
Fawzi Abdallah Al-Hiasat 2 meetings
Yaser Agel Akroush 2 meetings

K. Number of meetings for the Audit Committee with the External Auditor:
During 2017 the Audit Committee held four meetings with the external auditor.

L. Number of Board of Directors meetings during the year and attendees:
During 2017 the Board of Directors met nine times, and the members were:

Grant Earnshaw 9 meetings
Ahmad Said Heshmat 9 meetings
Amr Ali Reda 9 meetings
Samaan Kamel Samaan 9 meetings
Omar “ Mohammed Ali “ Othman Bdeir 9 meetings
Yaser Agel Akroush 6 meetings
Fawzi Abdallah Al-Hiasat 6 meetings
Sameer Ibrahim Shalan 3 meetings
Saoud Ahmad Nsairat 3 meetings
Horia Adrian -

Chairman of Board Directors
Grant Earnshaw

s
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Jordan Securities Commission Requirements
Records for 2017

A. Letter from chairman: piease refer to page(6)

B. Board of Directors Report:

Nine meetings were held by the Boards of Directors during 2017

1. Company’s Main Activities:

a. The company’s main activity is to produce, and sale of cement and to provide innovative building solutions to the local market.
b. Geographical distribution of the company is as follows:

No.

1

Location
Head office- AMMAN
Fuhais Plant- Fuhais
Rashadeya Plant- Tafila
Agaba sales office- Agaba
Eritrea & Sudan Terminals

Total

Headcount
123
193
276
4

596

C. The total capital investment for the company and its subsidiaries reached( 282) MJD in 2017.

2. Associate companies & Subsidiaries:

1. Sudan Company CTS- SUDAN
The subsidiary (CTS Company -SUDAN) the company
operation was stopped . Lafarge cement Jordan owned
99% from the capital of this company the amount of the
capital is 27,191 JD.

2.

Arab Concrete Supply Company (Lafarge

Concrete Jordan)

Type of subsidiary: limited liability

Main activity: Ready Mix production &transportation
Subsidiary capital: 1,915,000 JD

Ownership percentage: 51%

Address:

King Abdullah 11 ST —Al Rawabi —Bayader wadi Al- Seer
P.0.Box 930490

Amman-Jordan

Tel:06-5507250

Fax:06-5507260
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Headcount: 308 employees (distributed as per below schedule
over the different plants & locations):

Abu Alanda plant 41
Shafa badran plant 35
Irbid plant 37
Dleil plant 26
Sweileh plant 38
Jerash plant 14
Maintenance 41
Safety ,Healthy & environment dept 4
Head Office 23
Agaba 15
Madaba Plant 10
Quality Dept 24

*InMarch 2011 Arab Concrete Supply Company (the subsidiary)
has established Arabian Specialized Transportation Company
100% owned by the Arab Concrete Supply Company (Lafarge
Concrete Jordan)

- Type of subsidiary: limited liability

- Main activity: Transportation



_ JORDAN SECURITIES COMMISSION REQUIREMENTS RECORDS

3. A. Members of board of directors: (9)
B. Higher/ Top Management: (13)

4. The Main shareholders:

Number of shares Number of shares

Shareholder name Nationality 2016 Percentage 2017 Percentage
Lafarge French 30,388,664 50.275% 30,388,664 50.275%
Social S i

ocial Security Jordanian 13,197,226 21.83% 13,197,226 21.83%
Corporation

Mayloud Shoaiby Moroccan 6,232,125 10.31% 6,232,125 10.31%

5. Competitive Position:

A. Local market

Market is characterized by oversupply situation, as production capacity reached 11 million tons compared to local market
demand which does not exceed 4.2 million tons. Hence, a fierce competition is clear among companies operating in the cement
industry. Price competition is the main basis for competition in the local market. Distance and proximity play a major role on this..

B. Foreign market
Is a limited market due to high production cost, which does not fit with the global markets

6.Main Suppliers & Customers:

Suppliers: Supply % of total company purchases
1- National Electricity Company 43%

b Main Customers: Sales % of total company sales
1. Arab Concrete Supply Company. 28%

7. Franchise, Collateral & Invention Rights:

- No collateral agreement is provided for Lafarge Jordan Cement Company by the government, in addition to the expiration of
the Merit agreement with the government by the end of year 2008.

- The company has been granted preliminary approval of the Company to register an invention entitled “The use of pigments
in the Portland cement manufacturing process “ and grant number 3049 with effect from 28.08.2016.

8. Government Decisions & International Quality Standards:

a) Government decisions:
The fact that company continues not being able to use coal in Fuhaisaisais Plant as a source of energy puts the
company in a disadvantage position.
The increase in electricity & water prices negatively impacting company’s production cost.

b) International Quality Standards:
The company applies the International Quality Standards and has obtained the following certificates:
1. 1SO 9001
2. 1SO 14001
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9. A. Organizational Hierarchy: Piease refer to page (12)

B. Headcount by Qualifications:

Qualification / certification Headcount as of 31/12/2017

MASTER’S DEGREE 12
HIGHER DIPLOMA 1

BACHELORS DEGREE 172
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DIPLOMA 94
TAWJIHI (Secondary education certificate ) 53
BELOW TAWJIHI 155
ILLITERATE 1

APPLIED SECONDARY EDUCATION CERTIFICATE 55
TRAINING CERTIFICATE 55}
TOTAL 596

Subsidiary’s Headcount by Qualifications

PHD & Master

Company Headcount Deg Bachelor Deg. Diploma Tawjihi
Plants 285 2 22 20 242
Head Office 23 2 18 2 0
Total 308 4 40 22 242

C. Employee development & training programs: Piease refer to page ( 16 )

10. Risks:

1. Continuous increase in energy & raw material price.

2. Relatively small Jordanian market at the presence of five companies producing and selling cement in a market surplus
situation.

. Impact of economic slowdown on the overall cement market.

. Relatively overstaffed compared to produced volumes and operations activity.

. Pressures from government to reduce cement selling prices and setting a minimum and maximum price.

. Environmental litigations compensation of 6.766 million JD in 2017 for local community in Fuhais & Rashadiya and increasing
trend in litigations where new cases reached a count of 235 and still 1876 currently in count at the different stag.

. There is no agreement to organize Fuhais plant land which stopped since 23/2/2013.

. Cement import from neighboring countries, where production cost is much lower than Jordan due to governmental subsidies
fuel & electricity in these countries.

o OB~ W

0

11. Main activities & achievements: Please refer to page (14)
12. Financial impact of non recurring activities:

- Amortization of line two in Rashadiya Plant and related spare parts by amount 10,500 MJOD.
- Provision for early retirement plan 11,609 MJOD.
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13. Evolution of profit ,dividends, shareholders equity, securities prices:

Net shareholders
equity
(JD Million)

Dividends
(JD million)

Net profit before tax &

Price per share

Distribution (@]»)]

fees (JD million)

2012 (22,390) = 106,963 1.37
2013 (26,225) = 76,908 1.34
2014 (1,382) = 76,966 1.70
2015 2,290 - 81,587 1.290
2016 (1,744) = 73,367 1.560
2017 (32,433) = 37,610 1.210

14.Financial position Analysis & Results:
Lafarge Cement Jordan's 2017 annual results showed a net Losses of (33.329) million Jordanian Dinars compared to a
net losses of (1.712) million Jordanian Dinars in 2016. Forceful measures to reduce fixed costs mitigated the continuous

increase in operating costs as well as the heavy administrative fixed costs.

Below is a list of key financial indicators for the company in 2017 compared to 2016:

No

Financial indicator

Return per share

ROI (return on investment)

Return on shareholders’ equity

Return on capital

Gross operations profit

Net working capital

Liquidity Ratio

2017

(55%)

0%

(88.6%)

(55%)

0%

(22,296,625) JD

77.9%
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2016

(0.028)

3.3%

(0.023)

(0.028)

6.7%

(7,172,053)JD

90%
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Government Income:
Lafarge Cement Jordan contributed to government treasury and thus to the Jordanian economy by almost 8,807 MJD during
2017 compared to 10,730 MJD in 2016:

The list below is the government returns for the years 2010 - 2017:

Year Profit MJD VAT MJD Income tax & *other fees MJD Total MJD
2010 + 22,904 10,927 33,831
2011 - 18,867 0.841 19,708
2012 - 8,441 0.659 9,100
2013 - 8,998 440 9,438
2014 - 13,096 .633 13,729
2015 - 10,305 .536 10,841
2016 - 10,157 B3 10,730
2017 - 8,250 .557 8,807
TOTAL - 101,018 15,166 116,184

* “Other fees” have been added to income tax column; ie University fees & R&D.

15. Future development, for the coming year Plan & the Board Forecasted Company results
1. General assembly has approved during its extraordinary meeting dated 19/4/2017 to sell Fuhais Plant lands, and to continue
getting approvals related to land rezoning.
. Open new export markets to ensure higher utilization rate for production lines and high profitability.
. To work on reduce fixed and variable production costs through cut cost reduction, and follow up on electrical power station
project implementation using solar power before the year end in Rashadeya plant, and increase alternative fuel percentage.
. Follow up on employees cost file and obtain needed approvals to reduce excess employee’s numbers.
. Follow up on environmental file cases in order to reach positive decision from court of appeals based on plant production
stoppage and time passing.
6. To continue selling unused assets (lands, real estate, machinery and equipment) which have been started since 2016 after
BOD approval.
7. To call general assembly for extraordinary meeting to approve BOD recommendation dated on 29.1.2018 to use statutory
resources balance amounted 27 million JOD to reduce part of the accumulated losses according to amended company laws
no 24 for the year 2017

w N

(2B

16. Audit Fees:
Total Audit fees for the external auditors Deloitte & Touche for the year ended 2017 is (43)K JD.

The total amount paid to the external auditors Deloitte & Touche for work done at the subsidiaries was as follows:

Company Audit fee Other Total
Lafarge Concrete Jordan 13,210 - 13,210
Arabian Specialized Transportation Company 2,946 - 2,946
TOTAL 16,156 - 16,156
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17. 1 Securities owned by Board of Directors members:

No. of shares

Description Nationality No. of shares 2016 2017
A Lafarge Company 30,388,664 30,388,664
Represented by:
1- Horia Adrian Chairman till 23.1.2017 Romanian None None
Grant Earnshaw Chairman from 23.1.2017 England None None
2- Ahmad Said Heshmat Hasan Vice chairman Egyptian None None
3- Amr Ali Reda Member Egyptian None None
B Social Security Corporation 13,197,226 13,197,226
Represented by :
1- Saoud Ahmad Nsairat Memober till 1/5/2017 Jordanian None None
2- Yaser Agel Akroush Member from 1/5/2017 Jordanian None None
C  Rama Investment & Saving Company 10,000 10,000
Represented by :
1- Sameer |brahim Shalan Member till 1/5/2017 Jordanian None None
2- Fawzi Abdallah Hiasat Member from 1/5/2017 Jordanian None None

D  Private sector
Represented by :

Omar ‘Mohammed Ali * Othman Bdeir ~ Member Jordanian 56,356 56,356
E  Arab Concrete Supply Company:
Samaan Kamel Yacoub Samaan Member till 13/7/2017 Jordanian 250 250
Member from 13/7/2017 None 250

No other companies’ shares are controlled by members of the board.

17.2 Securities owned by Board of Directors’ relatives:

Description Nationality No. of shares 2016 No. of shares 2017

Ghada Ahmad Mukhtar / Wife
1.  of Member of the board Omar Jordanian 115 115
“Mohammed Ali” Othman Bdeir

- No shares owned by other members of the board relatives.
- No shares owned by relatives of the higher management.
- No other companies’ shares are controlled by members of the board.

17.3 Number of shares owned by Top Management:

No. of shares No. of shares

Description Nationality 2016 2017
Amr Ali Reda Country CEO Egyptian None None
Samman Kamel Yacoub Samman Lafarge RMX GM Jordanian None 250
Alaa Abdul Hamid Abu Ameereh Country CFO & Head Of Procurement Jordanian None None
Luma Ahmed Alabdallat Country Human Resource VP Jordanian None None

Abd-el Fattah “Mohammed Amin“

) Rashadiyah Plant Manager Jordanian None None
Abdel-Razzaq Muhtasib

No other companies’ shares are controlled by Executive committee.
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18 A. Board of Directors remuneration & benefits:

Transportation Yearly
Board
.. Yearly allowance . Travel Yearly
Description Remuneration .. Other
salary (JD)2016 2016(JD) expenses benefits
After tax (JD) (JD)

1 ** Horia Adrian Chairman till 23/1/2017 - -

Grant Earnshaw Chairman from 23/1/2017 - 1,516
2 **Ahmad Said Heshmat Hasan Vice chairman - - - 946 - -
3 **Amr Ali Reda Member - - - - - -
4 Omar “Mohammed Ali” Othman Member - 3,627 112 - -

Bdeir
5 Sameer Ibrahim Shalan Member till 1/5/2017 - - - - - -

Fawzi Abdallah Hiasat Member from 1/5/2017 - - - - - -
6 Saoud Ahmad Nsairat Memober till 1/5/2017 - - - - - -

Yaser Agel Akroush Member from 1/5/2017 - - - - - -

8 *** Samman Kamel Yacoub Samman Member - . - : B} B}

Transportation Allowance & remuneration package for Social Security Corporation representatives amounting 7,477 JD have
been transferred to Social Security Corporation.

Remuneration package for Lafarge Company representatives’ amounting 335 JDs after tax for 2017 have been transferred
to Lafarge Company.

*** Remuneration package for Arab Company for Concrete Industries representatives’ amounting 112 JDs have been transferred
to Arabia Company for Concrete Industries account.

**

18 B. Top Management remuneration & benefits:

remI?laerrlgtion el ezl
— Monthly Travel locally & Other
Description & other .
salary (JD) expenses Externally  benefits
allowance D) D)
JD)
Status Car &
1 Amr Ali Reda Country CEQ 13,036 83,963 27,031 67244 oSNl
house rent
2 Samman Kamel Yacoub Samman Lafarge RMX GM 9,243 28,773 2,418 - Status Car
Country CFO & Head
3 Alaa Abdul Hamid Abu Ameereh oo™ e 5,317 25,327 8717 - -
Of Procurement
4 Luma Ahmed Alabdallat Country Human 7,413 27,740 5,174 - :
Resource VP
5 Abd-el Fattah “Mohammed Amin Rashadiyah Plant 4,702 7241 1,066 i Status Car

Abdel-Razzag Muhtasib Manager

* Represents travel, tickets, and accommodation & travel expenses for the top management members & does not include travel
perdiems, for which they are not entitled.

19. Donations Paid & accrued in 2017:

No. Description JD

1 Local community donation 382,344
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20. Commitments, Contracts & Projects with Associate companies:

e Lafarge Cement Jordan Company’s relations with the Subsidiary (Lafarge Concrete Jordan) during 2017 amounted to
15,675,451 JOD Which represents the net purchases of cement.

e The company in 2017 did not make any commitments, contracts & projects with Chairman of the Board or Board of Directors
or General Manager or with any employee in the company or their relatives.

21. A- Company’s environmental contribution: Please refer to page(14)
B- Company contribution in serving the local community
C. 1. The Board of Directors confirms that there are no significant issues that may affect company’s continuity
over the coming year.

2. Confirms its responsibility for preparing the financial statements and providing an efficient control system within
the enterprise.

Chairman of the Board Vice chairman Member Member
Grant Earnshaw Ahmad Said Hishmat Amr Ali Reda Omar Othman Bdeir
{ L b /
Member Member Member
Samman Kamel

Yaser Aqel Akroush Fawzi Abdallah Hiasat
Samman

P

3. We sign here below to confirm the correctness, accuracy, and completeness of the
information in this report.

Country CFO
Chairman of the Board Country CEO & Head Of Procurement
Grant Earnshaw Amr Ali Reda Alaa Abdul Hamid

Abu Ameereh

N
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Independent Auditors’ Report
AM/ 81698

To the Chairman and Members of the Board of Directors
Jordan Cement Factories Company

(A Public Shareholding Limited Company)

Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Jordan Cement Factories Company (A Public Shareholding Limited Company)
(“the Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017, and the statement of income and
comprehensive income, statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2017, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the other ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Company in Jordan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Notes (27 & 29) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, which illustrate that the Company
has incurred a net loss for the year of around JD 33.3 million. In addition, the Company has accumulated losses, including
the current year’s losses of around JD 49.8 million as of December 31, 2017. These losses represent 82.3% of the Company’s
paid-up capital as of that date after writing off part of the accumulated losses of approximately JD 12.4 million from the voluntary
reserve based on the plan approved by the Company’s Board of Directors and the General Assembly on September 19, 2017.
Moreover, the Company suffers from a deficit in its working capital of around JD 22.3 million. The Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern depends heavily on the successful completion of the Company’s plan, which includes obtaining the proper
governmental and competent authorities’ approvals for re-zoning their land in Fuhais, and the achievement of adequate profits
in the futures as stated in Note (29).

Other Matter
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016, which are shown for comparison purposes, were
audited by another auditor who issued an unqualified opinion thereon February 14, 2017.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed
to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our
audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Provision for Restructuring

The Company’s provision for restructuring amounted to around
JD 11.6 million as of December 31, 2017 and is considered a
key audit matter. In accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards and local regulations, the Company is
required to estimate a provision for restructuring after obtaining
the Board of Directors’ approval in this regard. The preparation
of the restructuring provision requires the use of accounting
estimates that heavily depend on diligence and professional
judgement built on assumptions of future expectations as well as
the input and recommendation of the Company’s legal counsel.

Property, equipment, and the related spare parts
impairment expense.

The net book value of the property, equipment and the related
spare parts amounted to around JD 77.7 million and JD 15.6
million, respectively as of December 31, 2017. In this respect,
determining the impairment of these assets is a key audit matter.
Furthermore, the Company have not been fully utilizing Al-
Rashadiyeh and Fuhais Factories since 2013, and it performs
impairment testing on the property and equipment annually.
The Company’s impairment test depends on the future utilization
of the property, equipment, and the related spare parts.

These processes are complex and involve a high level of
estimation that includes the sale of the factories’ land. The
outcome of impairment testing could vary significantly, if
different assumptions are applied.

Valuation of the deferred tax assets

IAS 12 requires that deferred tax assets be recognized in respect
of all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference will be utilized. In this regard, the
Company’s deferred tax assets amounted to JD 22.2 million as at
31 December 2017, and the largest component of that amount
relates to the tax losses carried forward. Meanwhile, the valuation
of the deferred tax assets’ recoverability is complex and includes
a high level of estimation, which includes price fluctuations and
completion of the plan. The outcome of the valuation could vary
significantly, if different assumptions are applied.

Other Information

How the Key Audit Matter was addressed

Our audit procedures included understanding the nature
of the provision and the utilized internal control system, in
addition to assessing the reasonableness of the estimates
and the assumptions used, and valuating the sufficiency of
the provision recorded by management through studying
a sample and validating the method of calculation. We
have also relied on the Company’s legal counsel and
his submitted reports concerning the sufficiency of the
related provision. We have also verified the adequacy of
the disclosures relating to this provision.

How the Key Audit Matter was addressed

Our audit procedures included an assessment of
the methodology of the impairment testing and the
appropriateness of key assumptions used by the
management and the land evaluator and his submitted
reports for the evaluation of the property, equipment and
the related spare parts.

In addition, we have obtained the study prepared by the
management and evaluated it to validate the impact of
change in the primary assumptions.

We have also evaluated the sufficiency of the disclosure
related to the property and equipment as shown in Note
(8).

How the Key Audit Matter was addressed:

Our audit procedures included reviewing the
correspondence with the relevant tax authorities,
evaluating tax exposures, and assessing management’s
assumptions to determine the probability that deferred tax
assets recognized would be recovered in the consolidated
statement of income through generating taxable profits in
future years and through the available tax strategies. We
have also analyzed the utilized assumptions to evaluate the
current tax status, in addition to reviewing the applicable
tax laws and the budgeted forecasts prepared by the
management. Moreover, we have obtained approvals from
the Income Tax Department regarding deductible prior
years’ losses and the loss carryforward period under the
Income Tax Law No. 34 for the year 2014.

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the other information in the annual report

excluding the consolidated financial statements and the independent auditor’s report thereon, which is expected to be made

available to us after the date of our audit report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express any form of

assurance or conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA’s, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting, and based on the audit
evidenced obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the consolidated financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and implementation of the Company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement on our compliance with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate with them about all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguard procedures.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such information.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Company maintains proper accounting records duly organized and in line with the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. We recommend that the General Assembly of Shareholders approve these consolidated financial statements, taking
into consideration the aforementioned paragraph about the uncertainty that the Company would continue as a going concern.

Explanatory Paragraph

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are a translation of the statutory consolidated financial statements in the
Arabic language to which reference should be made.

Amman — The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan
Deloitte & Touche (M.E.) — Jordan

The attached notes 1 to 31 form part of these consolidated financial statements
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JORDAN CEMENT FACTORIES COMPANY
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As At 31 December

ASSETS Note 2017 2016
JD JD
Current Assets
Cash at banks 4 14,944,836 5,418,284
Accounts receivable and checks under collection 5 28,895,813 22,498,380
Inventory and spare parts 6 32,276,408 34,238,410
Other current assets 7 2,493,967 3,080,424
Total Current Assets 78,611,024 65,235,498
Non-current Assets
Property and equipment 8 77,754,557 93,588,838
F|ncaonr:srleahsesg:vzti;a;;:;ue through other 9 176,695 188,087
Goodwill 10 2,495,945 2,495,945
Employees’ housing and car loans 11 1,449,997 2,065,680
Deferred tax assets 12/d 22,226,492 22,237,250
Restricted bank balances 13 1,651,131 1,651,131
Total Non-Current Assets 105,754,817 122,226,931
TOTAL ASSETS 184,365,841 187,462,429
LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Due to banks 14 21,758,202 15,195,319
Short-term accounts payable 15 57,656,116 40,164,865
Other current liabilities 16 15,634,642 13,945,004
Long-term loans maturing within one year 17 5,000,000 1,750,000
Income tax provision 12/a 858,689 1,352,365
Total Current Liabilities 100,907,649 72,407,553
Non-current Liabilities
Obligations for employees’ post-retirement health
insurance benefits 18 26,295,000 25,474,000
Long-term loans 17 13,250,000 8,250,000
Long-term accounts payable 16 - 216,830
Total Non-current Liabilities 39,545,000 33,940,830
Total Liabilities 140,452,649 106,348,383
Owners’ Equity
Paid-up capital 19 60,444,460 60,444,460
Treasury stocks 19 (323) (323)
Statutory reserve 19 27,000,000 27,000,000
Voluntary reserve 19 - 12,399,640
Fair value reserve (60,865) (49,473)
Accumulated (losses) 29 (49,773,188) (26,427,257)
Total Shareholders’ Equity 37,610,084 73,367,047
Non-controlling interest 22 6,303,108 7,746,999
Total Owners’ Equity 43,913,192 81,114,046
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ EQUITY 184,365,841 187,462,429

The accompanying notes from (1) to (34) constitute an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and should be read with them
and with the accompanying review report.
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PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY

Consolidated Statement Of Income

For The Year Ended 31 December

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross Income

Selling and marketing expenses
General and administrative expenses
Other expenses

Operating (Loss) Income

Interest income

Provision for rehabilitation of quarries and
environment protection

Provision for employees’ vacations
Financing costs

Lawsuits expenses

Provision for restructuring

Provision for impairment
Post-retirement health insurance interest and expense
Foreign currency revaluation (losses)
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Other income

(Loss) for the Year before Income Tax
Income tax (expense) surplus

(Loss) for the Year

Attributable to:
Company shareholders

Non-controlling interest

Shareholders’ Basic and Diluted (Loss) per Share
for the Year

Note

16

16
15
6&8
18

12/b

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2017

JD
82,889,764
(72,410,039)
10,479,725
(1,518,246)
(8,820,859)
(140,927)
(307)
74,147

(68,760)

(34,900)
(2,354,441)
(6,766,011)

(11,609,346)
(10,500,000)
(1,381,000)
(1,180,697)
1,316,963
71314
(32,433,038)
(896,424)
(33,329,462)

(34,482,571)
1,153,109
(33,329,462)

JD/FILS

(.57)

2016
JD
91,546,594

(74,424,865)

17,121,729
(1,211,452)
(9,610,530)

(176,010)
6,123,737
213,821

(74,280)

(68,665)
(2,023,868)
(6,451,461)

(1,071,000)
359,359
1,219,284
28,089
(1,744,984)
33,368
(1,711,616)

(4,251,005)
2,539,389
(1,711,616)

JD/FILS

(.0703)

The accompanying notes from (1) to (34) constitute an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and should be read with them
and with the accompanying review report.
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JORDAN CEMENT FACTORIES C-OMPANY
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended 31 December

Note 2017 2016
JD JD

(Loss) for the year (33,329,462) (1,711,616)
Add: Other comprehensive income items that will not be reclassified to the
income statement in subsequent periods:

Net (I f fi ial ts at fair value th h oth hensi
! et (loss) from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive (11,392) (15.029)
income
Actuarial losses for post-retirement health insurance benefits 18 (1,263,000) (3,957,000)
Total hensive (I it that will not b lassified i b: t

0.’?1 comprehensive .( oss) items that wi .no e reclassified in subsequen (34.603.854) (5.683.645)
periods to the consolidated statement of income after tax —_—— —_—
Total Comprehensive (Loss) Attributable to:
The Company’s shareholders (35,756,963) (8,223,034)
Non-controllers’ interest 1,153,109 2,539,389

(34,603,854) (5,683,645)

The accompanying notes from (1) to (34) constitute an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and should be read with them
and with the accompanying review report.
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JORDAN CEMENT FACTORIES COMPANY
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For The Year Ended 31 December

Note 2017 2016
JD JD
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
(Loss) for the year before income tax (32,433,038) (1,744,984)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 6,859,411 7,740,953
(Gain) on sale of property and equipment (1,316,963) (1,219,284)
Provision for doubtful debt 871,834 90,000
Lawsuits provision 6,766,011 6,451,461
Post-retirement health insurance interest and expense 2,644,000 5,028,000
Financing expense 2,354,441 2,023,868
Provision for restructuring 11,609,346 -
Spare parts impairment provision 627,503 -
Property and equipment impairment provision 9,872,497 -
Interest (income) (74,147) (213,821)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Before Changes in Working Capital 7,780,895 18,156,193
(Increase) in accqunts receivable, other current (6,067,127) (1,582.962)
assets and housing and car loans
Decrease (increase) in inventory and spare parts 1,334,499 (654,141)
Increase (Qeclrgése) in trade payables and other 6,102,471 (12,981,508)
current liabilities - -
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Before Income and :rovisiogns paid 9,150,738 2,937,582
Paid from lawsuit provision (6,766,011) (6,451,461)
Postretirement health insurance benefits paid (1,823,000) (1,763,000)
Income tax paid 12/a (1,390,100) (1,202,484)
Net Cash Flows (used in) Operating Activities (828,373) (6,479,363)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Change in property and equipment 419,336 848,421
Interest received 74,147 213,821
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 493,483 1,062,242
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in loans 10,000,000 10,000,000
Payments from loans (1,750,000) -
Interest paid (2,354,441) (2,023,868)
Treasury stock - 3,077
D|V|dend§ d|§tr|buted by subsidiary companies to non- (2.597,000) (2,940,000)
controlling interest
Increase (decrease) in due to banks 6,562,883 (3,348,560)
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 9,861,442 1,690,649
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash at Banks 9,526,552 (3,726,472)
Cash at Banks — beginning of the year 5,418,284 9,144,756
Cash at Banks - End of the Year 4 12,944,836 5,418,284

The accompanying notes from (1) to (34) constitute an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and should be read with them
and with the accompanying review report.
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JORDAN CEMENT FACTORIES COMPANY

(SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General

a

b.
c.

. Jordan Cement Factories Company (subsequently herein referred to as “the Company”) was established

in 1951 as a Jordanian public shareholding limited Company and was registered at the Ministry of Industry and Trade under
Number (25) on June 10, 1964. The Company’'s authorized and issued capital was increased gradually to become JD
60,444,460 represented by 60,444,460 shares at a par value of one Jordanian Dinar per share. The Company’s permanent
address is Al-Fuhais, Shaker Circle, P.O. Box 930019, Amman — The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.

The Company’s main objectives are the production, manufacturing, and the trading of the cement inside the Hashemite Kingdom

of Jordan and outside it, either directly or through intermediaries with conditions and methods that the Company sees fit.

The Company is 50.275% owned by Lafarge SA — France (Parent Company).
The Company’s Board of Directors approved the consolidated financial statements on January 29, 2018.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

A.Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) and related interpretations.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Jordanian Dinar which represents the functional currency of the Company.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost principle except for financial
assets and financial liabilities, which are stated at fair value at the date of the consolidated financial statements.

The accounting policies adopted for the current year are consistent with those applied in the year ended December 31, 2016
except for the effect of the adoption of the new and modified standards mentioned in Note (32 / a).

B. Basis of Consolidation of the consolidated financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries, and entities under its
control. Moreover, control is achieved when the Company has the ability to control the financial and operating policies of the
subsidiary company to obtain benefits from its activities.

The company will re-evaluate its control on the subsidiary company if the facts and circumstances include changes to the
above mentioned control elements.

When the voting rights of the Company are less than the majority rights of the investee Company-as the Company has authority
over the investee company when it has sufficient voting rights granting it the ability to direct the investee-related activities
from one-side-the Company considers all the relevant facts and circumstances when performing an evaluation of whether the
owned voting rights are enough to give it authority over the investee company or not. This includes the following:

The size of the Company'’s voting rights compared to others’ and their distribution.

The probable voting rights owned by the Company.

Rights arising from any other contractual arrangements.

Any indications or circumstances pointing to whether the Company is currently capable/incapable of directing its related
activities the decision must be taken. This includes voting patterns in the shareholders’ previous meetings.

Transactions, balances, revenues, and expenses between the Company and its subsidiaries are eliminated.

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies are prepared for the same fiscal year of the Company adopting the
same accounting policies of the Company. If the accounting policies adopted by the subsidiary differ from those adopted by
the Company, the necessary adjustments to the subsidiary company’s financial statements are made so that its accounting
policies match those of the Company.

The result of subsidiaries company’s operation will be consolidated in the consolidated income statements from the date of
acquisition which is the date that the control effectively moved to the company over the subsidiary company, the result of
subsidiaries company’s operation which has been disposed will be consolidated in the consolidated incomes statement up to
the date of disposal which is the date that the company loses control over the subsidiaries.

The non-controlling interest represents the part of the owners’ equity of the subsidiaries that is not owned by the Company.
The non-controlling interest is shown in subsidiary Company’s net assets in a separate line item included within the statement
of owners’ equity.
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The condensed consolidated interim financial statements comprise the interim financial statements of the Company and the
following subsidiary companies, after eliminating intercompany transactions and balances:

Company’s Name Paid up Capital Percentage Ownership  Principal Activity Place of Work

Arabian Concrete Supply Company * 1,900,000 51% Manufacturing Amman

* Arabian Concrete Supply Company (subsidiary company) incorporated the Arabian Specialized Transportation Company on March
10, 2011, which is wholly owned by the Arabian Concrete Supply Company and they both conduct their operations in Jordan.

The subsidiary Company’s balances and transactions after the consolidation with its subsidiary company as of December 31,
2017 was as follows:
December 31, 2017 **

Assets Liabilities Revenues Expenses
JD JD JD JD

Arabian Concrete Supply Company
and Arabian Specialized 33,671,885 13,526,654 44,262,209 41,878,825
Transportation Company

** The financial information represents the consolidated information for the two subsidiaries mentioned above as of December
31, 2017.

The following are the significant accounting policies adopted:

a. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are stated at net realizable value less allowance for doubtful debts. Moreover, a provision for doubtful debts
and late repayments is booked according to management’s estimates of the recoverable amounts. Bad debts are written off

when there is no possibility of recovery. Recoveries from written off accounts receivables are recorded as other income in the
consolidated statement of income.

b. Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and other impairments, and are depreciated (except

for land) when ready for use, according to the straight-line method over their expected useful lives as follows:

Buildings 6-50
Machinery and equipment 5-30
Vehicles 5-15
Tools and devices 5-15
Furniture and fixture 5-11
Computers 2-15
Others 5-20

- When the recoverable amount of any property and equipment becomes less than its net book value, its value is reduced to the
recoverable amount, and the impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement of income.

- The useful lives of property and equipment are revalued at the end of each year. If the revaluation differs from previous
estimates, the change is recorded in subsequent years, being a change in estimate.

- Property and equipment are eliminated when disposed of or when no future benefits are expected from their use or disposal.
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c. Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost and classified on the basis of either definite or indefinite useful life. Intangible assets with

definite useful lives are amortized over their estimated lives at an annual rate of 15%.

Any indications of impairment in the value of intangible assets as of the financial statements date are reviewed. Furthermore, the
estimated useful lives of the impaired intangible assets are reassessed, and any amendments are made in the subsequent period.

d. Projects in progress
Projects in progress represent plant and properties under construction and are stated at cost. This includes the cost of
construction and other direct costs.

e. Housing and Car Loans
- Housing and car loans are recognized initially at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective

interest rate method.
- Gain and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the loans are derecognized or impaired, as
well as through the amortization process.

f. Inventory and Spare Parts
- Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

- Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for as follows:
e Raw materials and spare parts — purchase cost on weighted average basis.
¢ Finished goods and work in progress — cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion of manufacturing overheads.

- Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

g. Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Jordanian Dinars at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the

transactions. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Jordanian Dinars at the average exchange
rates published by the Central Bank of Jordan at year-end. The resulting exchange gains or losses are recorded in the consolidated
statement of income.

h. Accounts Payables and Accruals
Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for services or goods received whether billed by the supplier or not.

i. Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has liabilities at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position arising
from previous events, settlement of these liabilities is probable, and their value can be reliably measured.

j. Income Tax

- Income tax expenses represent current income taxes and deferred taxes.

- Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the enterprise expects, at the statement
of financial position date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

- Current income tax is calculated based on the tax rates and laws that are applicable in Jordan.

- Deferred taxes are expected to be paid or recovered due to temporary timing differences between the value of the assets or
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the value on the basis of which tax is calculated. Furthermore, deferred
taxes are calculated using the liability method in the consolidated statement of financial position according to the tax rates
expected to be applied at the time of tax liability settlement or the recognition of the deferred tax assets.
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k. End of service indemnity
The end of service indemnity provision is recorded in the consolidated statement of income to the financial statements in

accordance with the end of service system in the Company.

I. Obligation for Employees Post-Retirement Health Insurance Benefits

- The Group operates a defined post-retirement health benefit plan for qualifying employees and their families.

- The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the period in which they are occurred within other comprehensive income.

m. Loans
All loans are initially recognized at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing
loans are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest on loans is recorded in the year
it is earned.

n. Rehabilitation of Quarries Provision
Provision is made for the Rehabilitation of Quarries, based on future estimated expenditures discounted to present values.

0. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reflected in the statement of financial position only when
there are legal rights to offset the recognized amounts, the Company intends to settle them on a net basis, or assets are realized
and liabilities settled simultaneously.

p. Goodwill

- Goodwill is recognized at cost, which represents the excess amount paid to acquire or purchase cash-generating units owned
by other companies over the Company’s share in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of these units at the acquisition date.

- Goodwill is recognized as an intangible asset at cost, and subsequently, reduced by any impairment losses.

- Goodwill is distributed over the cash-generating unit(s) for the purpose of testing the impairment in its value.

- In case the cash-generating units are sold, goodwill value is considered upon determining the amount of profit or loss resulting
from the selling transaction.

q. Revenue

- Revenue from sales is recognized substantial transfer of risk and reward and when the revenue can be reliably measured.
- Interest is charged to the consolidated statement of income according to the accrual basis.
- Other income is recognized according to the accrual basis.

r. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
- These financial assets represent investments in equity instruments for the purpose of keeping them for the long term.

- These assets are recognized at fair value plus acquisition expenses at the time of purchase. They are subsequently re-
evaluated at fair value; and the change in fair value is presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within owners’ equity, including the change in the fair value from the translation differences of non-cash assets denominated in
foreign currencies. In case of selling these assets or part therefrom, the resultant gains or losses are taken to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within consolidated owners’ equity. Moreover, the fair value reserve balance of the sold
equity instruments is to be transferred directly to retained earnings, and not through the consolidated income statement.

- Dividends are taken to the consolidated statement of income.

s. Fair Value

The closing price (purchase of assets / sale of liabilities) at the date of the financial statements in active markets represents the
fair value of the financial instruments and derivatives that have market prices.
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In case declared market prices do not exist, active trading of some financial assets and derivatives is not available, or the market

is inactive, fair value is estimated by one of several methods including the following:

- Comparison with the present market value of a very similar financial instrument.

- Analysis of future cash flows and expected discounted cash flows at a rate used for a similar financial instrument.

- Adoption of options pricing models.

- The long-term non-interest bearing assets and liabilities are evaluated according to discounted cash flows at the effective interest
rate. Moreover, the discounted interest revenue is recorded under received interest income in the consolidated statement of income.

The evaluation methods aim at obtaining a fair value that reflects market expectations and considers market factors and any
expected risks or benefits upon valuing financial instruments.

3. Accounting Estimates

Preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements and application of the accounting polices require from the

Company’s management to estimate and assess some items affecting assets and liabilities and to disclose contingent liabilities.
These estimates and assumptions also affect revenue, expenses, provisions, and changes in the fair value within the statement
of comprehensive income and owners’ equity and require from the Company’s management to estimate and assess the amounts
and timing of future cash flows. The aforementioned estimates and assumptions are based on multiple factors with varying
degrees of assessment and uncertainty. Moreover, the actual results may differ from the estimates due to the changes resulting
from the conditions and circumstances of those estimates in the future.

We believe that the estimates in the consolidated financial statements are reasonable. The details are as follows:

- A provision for doubtful debts is taken on the basis and estimates approved by management in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

- Income tax expense for the year is accounted for in accordance with the laws, regulations, and International Financial Reporting
Standards and the deferred tax assets and liabilities and the provision for income tax is properly calculated and recorded.

- A provision for spare parts is taken on the basis and estimates approved by management in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

- Management periodically reassesses the economic useful lives of tangible and intangible assets for the purpose of calculating
annual depreciation and amortization based on the general condition of these assets and the assessment of their expected
useful economic lives in the future. Impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement of income.

- A provision for lawsuits raised against the Company is taken based on a legal study prepared by the Company’s legal consultants.
According to the study, probable future risks are identified; the study is reviewed periodically.

Fair value hierarchy: The Company is required to determine and disclose the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurements are categorized in their entirety, segregating fair value measurements in accordance with the levels defined
in IFRSs. Differentiating between Level (2) and Level (3) fair value measurements, i.e., assessing whether inputs are observable
and whether the unobservable inputs are significant, may require judgment and a careful analysis of the inputs used to measure
fair value, including consideration of factors specific to the asset or liability.

4. Cash at Banks

This item consists of the following:

December 31,

JD JD
Cash at banks 14,944,836 5,418,284
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5. Accounts Receivable and Checks under Collection
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

JD JD
Local sales receivables 20,045,331 14,567,928
Foreign sales receivables 2,347,986 2,002,122
Due from related parties (Note 25) 181,382 55,655
Other receivables 379,469 248,712
22,945,168 16,874,474
Allowance for doubtful debt * (4,713,591) (4,221,734)
18,240,577 12,652,740
Checks under collection 10,655,236 9,845,640
28,895,813 22,498,380

* Movement on the provision for doubtful debt is as follows:

JD JD
Balance - beginning of the year 4.221,734 4,716,020
Provision (recovery) during the year - net 491,857 (494,286)
Balance — End of the Year 4,713,591 4,221,734

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with only creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial
loss from defaults. The following are the accounts receivable due but not impaired:

December 31,

JD JD
Current receivables 9,767,949 5,491,701
30 days - 60 days 1,212,421 2,394,089
61 days — 90 days 954,697 1,803,744
91 days — 120 days 1,414,155 934,042
More than 120 days 9,604,946 6,250,898
22,954,168 16,874,474

The Company studies the aging of the receivables and the sufficiency of the booked provision at the end of each financial period.

There are credit concentrations in the Company’s account receivables for the first ten major customers that represent 35% of
the total accounts receivable as of December 31, 2017.
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6. Inventory and Spare Parts
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

JD JD
Spare parts 15,584,014 15,661,987
Finished goods 5,979,208 5,542,883
Work in process 9,999,245 11,650,512
Raw materials 3,647,132 3,582,181
Fuel 2,781,774 2,838,757
37,991,373 39,276,320
Provision for slowing moving items * (5,714,965) (5,037,910)
32,276,408 34,238,410

* Movement on the provision for slow moving items is as follows:

JD JD
Balance - beginning of the year 5,037,910 6,969,870
Provision during the year - net * 677,055 (1,931,960)
Balance — End of the Year 5,714,964 5,037,910

* This item includes spare part impairment provision amount of JD 627,503 The company recorded the amount in the
consolidated income statement during the year ended December 31, 2017 based on the Company’s board of directors’
approval at their meeting held on January 29, 2018.

7. Other Current Assets:

This item consists of the following:

December 31,

JD JD
Contractors’ receivables and advances 1,862,660 2,015,409
Prepaid expenses 443,317 577,857
Refundable deposits 62,687 347,645
Others 125,303 139,513
2,493,967 3,080,424
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9. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

This item consists of the following:

December 31,

Quoted Investment

Al Janoub Filters Manufacturing Company - 3,482
Mining Investment Company 26,898 34,808
26,898 38,290

Unquoted Investment

Jordanian Investment and South Development Company 114,297 114,297
Chemical and Mining Industries Company 35,000 35,000
Rashadiya Employees’ Association 500 500
149,797 149,797
176,695 188,087

- These stocks were evaluated according to the last audited financial statements of the invested Companies.

10. Goodwill

Goodwill of JD 2,495,945 relates to the acquisition of Al Aloul Group that took place in 2008. For impairment testing purposes,
goodwill acquired through business combination has been allocated to the ready mix (concrete) operating and reportable

segment (cash-generating unit).

On December 31, 2017, management performed its goodwill impairment test. The recoverable amount of the ready mix
(concrete) cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on the 2017 financial budget approved by management. Cash flow projections beyond 2017 are estimated using a 3% to 5%
growth rate, which management believes is reflective of the average growth rate in the region. The discount rate applied to cash
flow projections is 8%, which represents the weighted-average cost of capital for the Group, taking into consideration the risks
specific to the ready mix (concrete) segment.

As a result of this analysis, no impairment loss was recorded.

The calculation of value in use is most sensitive to the following assumptions:
- Gross margin

- Discount rates

- Growth rate used to estimate cash flows beyond the budget period

With regard to the assessment of value in use, management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key
assumptions would cause the carrying value of the unit to materially exceed its recoverable amount.
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11. Employee Housing and Car Loans
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2017 2016
JD JD
Employee Housing Loans * 1,431,625 2,017,543
Employee Car Loans ** 18,372 48,137
1,449,997 2,065,680

*

The Company granted its classified employees, who have been in service with the Company for not less than five years,
interest-free housing loans at a maximum amount of JD 22,000 per employee. The loans are repayable in monthly installments,
deducted from the employees’ monthly salaries over a period not to exceed 15 years. These loans are guaranteed by a
mortgage over the real estate.

** The Company granted its classified employees interest-free car loans ranging from a minimum amount of JD 7,000 to JD
35,000 depending on the employee’s grade. The loans are repayable in monthly installments, deducted from the employees’
monthly salaries over a period not to exceed 8 years. These loans are guaranteed by a mortgage over the financed car.

Housing and car loans are initially recorded at fair value which is calculated by discounting the monthly installments to their

present value using an interest rate of 8.5% and 6.5%, respectively, which approximates the interest rate for similar commercial
loans, and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

12. Income Tax

a. Income tax provision:

The movement on the income tax provision is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2017 2016
JD JD
Balance — beginning of the year 1,352,365 1,172,562
Income tax for the year 896,424 1,382,287
Income tax paid during the year (1,390,100) (1,202,484)
Balance — End of the Year 858,689 1,352,365

b. Income tax expense:
The income tax expense shown in the consolidated income statement is represented follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2017 2016
JD JD
Income tax expense during the year 896,424 1,382,287
Deferred tax assets additions = (1,415,655)
896,424 (33,368)

A final tax settlement has been reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department up to the year 2014. Income tax returns
have been filled for the years 2015 and 2016 for Jordan Cement Factories Company (The Parent Company) and its subsidiaries.
However, the Income and Sales Tax Department did not audit these returns and no final settlement has been reached yet.

The income tax provision was recorded for the subsidiaries and in the management’s opinion, the recorded income tax provision
is sufficient to meet any tax commitments as of December 31, 2017.
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c. The reconciliation between the taxable profit and the accounting profit is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2017 2016
JD JD

Accounting (loss) (32,433,038) (1,744,984)
Non-deductible expenses 3,040,312 2,999,315
Taxable income (29,392,726) 1,254,331
Relates to

Total loss excluding Agaba - Holding Company (35,682,746) (9,189,841)
Taxable income excluding Agaba - Subsidiary 6,154,200 9,286,739
Taxable income for Agaba - Holding Company 590,438 952,013
Taxable income for Agaba - Subsidiary 106,290 205,420
Stzil::tlzxrzr;c:(rqr;eb;ax rate for Holding Company 4% 219%
Statutory income tax rate for Subsidiary excluding Agaba 14% 14%
Statutory income tax rate for Holding Company - Agaba 5% 5%
Statutory income tax rate for Subsidiary - Agaba 5% 5%
Income tax expense (benefit) 896,424 (33,368)

d. Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax asset balances and transactions as of December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Consolidated statement of
financial position Consolidated statement income

Provision for lawsuits against the Group 1,200,000 1,200,000 - -
Allowance for doubtful accounts 518,648 518,648 - (184)

Provision for rehabilitation of quarries and

environment protection 288,337 288,337 - 17,827
Employees’ vacation accrual 158,571 158,571 - 8,727
Provision for slow moving inventories 1,201,444 1,201,444 - (463,670)
Other provisions 411 411 - 18
Deferred income tax on accumulated losses 18,859,081 18,869,839 = 1,852,937

Total 22,226,492 22,237,250 - 1,415,655

13. Restricted Bank Balances

This item represents a restricted balance at the Arab Bank as of December 31, 2017 as a result of a lawsuit raised by Al
Maysara Al Soudaniyeh Company, in which the Swiss Company Cementia was operating the station owned by the Jordan Cement
Factories Company (Boursudan Station). The Swiss company Cementia has reimbursed the Company for this restriction until

the case is resolved.
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14. Due To Banks

This item represents utilized credit facilities as of December 31, 2017. The Company has credit facilities from the Housing Bank
for Trade and Finance with a credit limit of JD 8 Million, from the Arab Bank with a credit limit of JD 4 Million, from Societe
Generale Bank with a credit limit of JD 4 Million and from The Jordan Kuwait Bank with a credit limit of JD 3 Million, from ABC
Bank with a credit limit of JD 2.5 Million, from Etihad Bank with a credit limit of JD 2 Million, with annual interest rates ranging
from 6.25% to 7.38%. The Company guarantees settling these balances through its personal guarantee.

15. Accounts Payables

This item consists of the following:

S;:;;;f;? Long term payables S::;:;ﬁ::‘ Long term payables
JD JD JD JD
Trade payables 21,630,165 - 21,226,375 216,830
Accrued payables * 19,414,105 - 7,070,096 -
Due to related parties (Note 25) 16,611,846 = 11,828,394 =
57,656,116 - 40,164,865 216,830

* This item includes a provision with an amount of JD 11,609,346 as of December 31, 2017 for terminating employee contracts
and restructuring the Company based on the Board of Directors approval on the decision on January 29, 2018.

16. Other Current Liabilities

This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2017 2016
JD JD

Unpaid dividends 6,720,038 5,659,830
Sales tax payable 809,526 -
Provision for lawsuits against the Group (Note 26)* 5,057,120 5,057,120
Housing fund and health insurance deposits 119,934 135,218
Rehabilitation of quarries and environment protection** 1,270,163 1,201,403
Provision for other commitments 334,245 84,698
Provision for employees unity fund and end of service indemnity - 1,723
Employees’ vacation accrual 663,294 660,711
Accrued expenses 221,492 442,418
Others 438,830 701,883

15,634,642 13,945,004

* The movement on the lawsuits provision is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2017 2016
JD JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,057,120 5,057,120
Provision for the year 6,766,011 6,451,461
Recovery from provision during the year (6,766,011) (6,451,461)
Balance at the End of the Year 5,057,120 5,057,120

** Provision is made for the rehabilitation of quarries, based on future estimated expenditures discounted using a discount rate of 5.7%.
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- The movement on the provision for rehabilitation is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

{0/ 2016
JD JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,201,403 1,127,123
Provision for the year 68,760 74,280
Balance at the End of the Year 1,270,163 1,201,403
17. Loans

This item consists of the following:

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Short Term Long Term Short term Long term
JD JD
Arab Bank * 2,500,000 7,500,000 = =
TEIen::::'ng Bank for Trade and 1,500,000 3,750,000 750,000 5,250,000
Societe Generale Bank - Jordan*** 1,000,000 2,000,000 1,000,000 3,000,000
5,000,000 13,250,000 1,750,000 8,250,000

*  On October 3, 2017 the Company signed a loan agreement with The Arab Finance in an amount of JD 10 Million at an
interest rate of 7% to be paid on eight equal semi-annual payments of JD 2.5 Million. The first payment is due on October
2, 2018 and the last payment is on January 1, 2021.

** On August 8, 2016 the Company signed a loan agreement with The Housing Bank for Trade and Finance in an amount of JD
6 Million at an interest rate of 5.5% to be paid on eight equal semi-annual payments of JD 750 thousand. The first payment
is due on July 1, 2017 and the last payment is on January 1, 2021.

*** On June 13, 2016 the Company signed a loan agreement with Societe Generale Bank in an amount of JD 4 Million at an
interest rate of 5.5% to be paid on eight equal semi-annual payments of JD 500 thousand. The first payment is due on June
30, 2017 and the last payment is on December 30, 2020.

- The movement on the loans are as follows:

Beginning Balance

Ending Balance of

Additions Payments the year

of the year

JD JD JD JD
Arab Bank * : 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
TzsdH;:j:fe%f”k for Trade 6,000,000 . 750,000 5,250,000
Societe Generale Bank — Jordan*** 4,000,000 = 1,000,000 3,000,000
10,000,000 10,000,000 1,750,000 18,250,000

- The loans mentioned above are guaranteed by the Company’s personal guarantee.
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18. Obligation for Employees’ Post-Retirement Health Insurance Benefits

The Group operates a defined post-retirement health benefit plan for qualifying employees and their families who meet certain

conditions. Under the plan, employees are entitled to retirement benefits on attainment of a retirement age of 50 years for
females and 60 years for males. No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees.

Retirees (until their deaths) and their families (until the death of the spouse and until the maximum age of coverage for the
children) pay a contribution of:

1- 2.5% of social security salary for retiree with a minimum of JD 6 per month.
2- 20% of the families’ medical cost with a maximum of JD 200 per medical case.

Changes in the present value of the obligation for employees’ post-retirement health insurance benefits were as follows:

JD JD
Balance - beginning of the year 25,474,000 22,209,000
Expense during the year 1,381,000 1,071,000
Actuarial losses 1,263,000 3,957,000
Paid during the year (1,823,000) (1,763,000)
Balance — End of the Year 26,295,000 25,474,000

The following table summarizes the components of the employees’ post-retirement health insurance net expense recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

JD JD
Current service cost 147,000 106,000
Interest cost 1,234,000 965,000
1,381,000 1,071,000

The principal assumptions used in determining post-retirement health insurance provision for the Company’s plan are shown below:
2017 2016

Discount Rate 4.85% 5.08%
Long term medical cost inflation rate 3.50% 3.50%
Expected rate of salaries increase 4.60% 4.90%
Reevaluation of pension rate 2% 2%

88-90 for female 60-64 for male
1% a year up to 50 years old

88-90 for female 60-64 for male
1% a year up to 50 years old

Mortality / Disability age
Turnover rates

Retirement age:

Male 60 60
Female 615 515
Maximum age of coverage for children

Female 27 27
Male 23 23
Annual premium — cement employees JD 404 JD 413
Annual premium — retired employees JD 406 JD 385
Contribution and co-payments for family’s member JD 61 JD 62
Social security salary JD 7,503 JD 7,441
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the present value of the obligation for employees’ post-retirement health
insurance benefits and the current service cost and interest cost on obligation to reasonably possible changes in medical cost.

Effect on current service
cost and interest cost
on the obligation

Increase /decrease Effect on the present
For the year ending December 31, 2017 in medical costs value of the obligation

+1% 262,950 26,440

-1% (262,950) (26,440)
For the year ending December 31, 2016

+1% 254,740 50,280

-1% (254,740) (50,280)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the present value of the obligation for employees’ post-retirement health
insurance benefits to reasonably possible changes in the discount rate.

Effect on present value
Increase /decrease of the obligation

in discount rate

JD
+5% 1,314,750 1,273,700
-5% (1,314,750) (1,273,700)

The cumulative amount of actuarial losses is JD 13,116,000 as of 31 December 2017 (JD 11,850,000 as of December 31, 2016).

19.0wners’ Equity

This item consists of the following:

- Paid up capital
The authorized and paid up capital of the Company is JD 60,444,460 as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 divided
into 60,444,460 shares at JD one par value per share.

- Treasury stocks
This amount represents the value of the stocks that are owned by the Arabian Concrete Supply Company (Subsidiary Company)
in the capital of Jordan Cement Factories Company in the amount of JD 323 which were purchased on 2012.

- Statutory reserve
The amounts accumulated in this account were transferred from the annual net income before tax at 10% rate during previous
years according to the Jordan Company’s law. This reserve cannot be distributed to shareholders.

- Voluntary reserve
The amounts accumulated in this account were transferred from the annual net income before taxes at a maximum rate of 20%

during previous years. This reserve will be used for the purposes approved by the Company’s board of directors. The General
Assembly of the shareholders has the right to capitalize or distribute the whole reserve or part thereof as dividends. The Board
of Director’s approval and recommendation was granted to write off part of the accumulated losses amount of JD 12,399,640
through the use of the Company’s voluntary reserve. The Company’s General Assembly approved the decision in their meeting
held on September 19, 2017.
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20. Selling and Marketing Expenses

This item consists of the following:

JD JD
Salaries and wages 1,013,089 833,418
Contribution to social security 112,157 93,776
Other 393,000 284,258
1,518,246 1,211,452

21. General and Administrative Expneses
This item consists of the following:

JD JD

Salaries, wages and other benefits 3,668,804 3,747,745
Contribution to social security 369,340 335,701
Contribution to employees’ provident fund 212,700 212,468
Contribution to employees unity fund 21,699 21,732
Legal and consulting fees 503,770 1,397,238
Franchise fees - Lafarge (parent) 1,186,636 1,551,389
Travel and transportation 127,803 109,814
Depreciation 104,340 234,579
Advertisements and exhibitions 52,439 24,608
Post and telephone 75,881 89,260
Insurance 213,913 196,454
Stationary, subscriptions and printings 166,862 113,924
Fuel 49,387 38,509
Donations 313,229 390,293
Rent 220,787 223,842
Training 53,619 45,460
Maintenance 21,287 31,612
Computer expenses 346,285 104,070
Hospitality 63,932 53,960
Others 1,048,146 687,872

8,820,859 9,610,530
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The following represents financial information for the subsidiaries in which the non-controlling interests is significant:

Country of

Company Name

. .. Non-controlling interest
Operating Activites

origin

Arabian Concrete Supply Company Jordan

Producing and trading in ready mix cement

2017 2016
49% 49%

The following represent summarized financial information for the subsidiary. Information was prepared before eliminating

transactions with related parties:

Significant accumulated non-controlling interests

Arabian Concrete Supply Company

Significant profits attributable to non-controlling interest

Arabian Concrete Supply Company

A. Consolidated Statement of Financial Position:

2017 2016
JD JD
6,303,108 7,764,999
2017 2016
JD JD
1,153,109 2,539,389

For the year Ended December 31,

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Total equity

Non-Controlling interests share from equity

B. Consolidated Statement of Income:

2017 2016
Arabian Concrete Supply Company
JD JD

26,268,928 25,383,633
3,889,135 7,674,605
(20,819,349) (17,248,036)
9,338,715 15,810,202
6,303,108 7,746,999

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses
Operating Income

Lawsuits expenses

Finance costs

Other income

Income before tax for the year
Income tax expenses

Income for the year

Total comprehensive income

Non-controlling interests share of other comprehensive income

2017 2016

Arabian Concrete Supply Company
JD JD

44,232,562 45,091,403
(38,122,579) (36,907,521)
6,109,983 8,183,882
(691,804) (472,400)
(1,924,942) (1,488,716)
3,493,237 6,222,766
= (16,000)
(272,066) (186,684)
29,107 472,759
3,250,278 6,492,841
(866,894) (1,310,414)
2,383,384 5,182,427
2,383,384 5,182,427
1,153,109 2,539,389
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c. Summarized statement of cash flows:

2017 2016

Arabian Concrete Supply Company

JD JD
Cash flows
Operating activities (9,697,366) 1,198,828
Investing activities (116,197) 387,342
Financing activities 7,749,417 (2,844,183)

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash

: (2,064,146)
equivalents —_—

(1,258,013)

23. Segmental and Geographical information

a. Segmental Information
Details of this item are as follows:

Cement Ready Mix (concrete)

. . Eliminations
For the year ended December 31, 2017 Business Business
Revenues
Sales 38,657,202 44,232,562 - 82,889,764
Inter segment sales 15,675,451 = (15,675,451) =
Total 54,332,653 44,232,562 (15,675,451) 82,889,764
Results -
(Loss) before tax (35,653,216) 3,220,178 - (32,433,038)
Income tax (expense) (29,530) (866,894) = (896,424)
(Loss) profit for the year (35,682,746) 2,353,284 = (33,329,462)
Other segment information
Capital expenditures 872,668 195,797 - 1,068,465
Depreciation 6,411,200 448,211 - 6,859,411
Interest income 74,147 - - 74,147
Interest expense 2,082,375 272,066 - 2,354,441
Impairment expense 10,500,000 - - 10,500,000
Cement Ready Mix (concrete)
For the year ended December 31, 2016 Business Business
Revenues
Sales 46,455,191 45,091,403 - 91,546,594
Inter segment sales 15,101,261 = (15,101,261) =
Total 61,556,452 45,091,403 (15,101,261) 91,546,594
Results
(Loss) Income before tax (8,237,825) 6,492,841 - (1,744,984)
Income tax benefit (expense) 1,343,782 (1,310,414) = 33,368
Income for the year (6,894,043) 5,182,427 = (1,711,616)
Other segment information
Capital expenditures 699,573 70,000 - 769,573
Depreciation 7,019,298 721,655 - 7,740,953
Interest income 213,821 - - 213,821
Interest expense 1,837,184 186,684 - 2,023,868
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Cement Business Ready mix (concrete)

As of December 31, 2017 Business

Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets 150,693,956 33,671,885 184,365,841
Segment liabilities 126,925,995 13,526,654 140,452,649

As of December 31, 2016

Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets 155,121,203 32,341,226 187,462,429
Segment liabilities 92,628,964 13,719,419 106,348,383

b. Geographical Information
Revenue, profit, assets and liabilities by geographical segment are as follows:

Jordan Excluding Aqaba

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Revenues

Sales 79,486,454 3,403,310 82,889,764
Results.

(Loss) before tax (33,129,765) 696,727 (32,433,038)
Income tax benefit (expense) (861,392) (35,032) (896,424)
(Loss) for the year (33,991,158) 661,695 (33,329,462)

Other segment information

Capital expenditures 1,068,465 - 1,068,465
Depreciation 6,857,905 1,506 6,859,411
Interest income 74,147 - 74,147
Interest expense 2,354,441 - 2,354,441
Impairment expense 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Revenues

Sales 87,724,594 3,822,000 91,546,594
Results

income before tax (2,902,694) 1,157,710 (1,744,984)
Income tax benefit (expense) 99,982 (66,614) 33,368
Loss for the year (2,802,712) 1,091,096 (1,711,616)

Other segment information

Capital expenditures 769,573 - 769,573
Depreciation 7,728,207 12,746 7,740,953
Interest income 213,821 - 213,821
Interest expense 2,023,868 - 2,023,868
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Jordan Excluding Aqaba Agaba Total
As of December 31, 2017 D D D
Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets 182,706,641 1,659,200 184,365,841
Segment liabilities 139,390,316 1,062,333 140,452,649

As at December 31, 2016
Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets
Segment liabilities 186,218,614 1,243,815 187,462,429
105,584,639 763,744 106,348,383

24. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

This item consists of the following:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2017 2016
JD JD
Letters of guarantee 4,292,851 4,259,851
Bills of collection 967,202 3,445,578
5,260,053 7,705,429

- The future contractual commitments were as follows:

December 31,

2017 2016
JD JD
Purchase of property and equipment 284,464 253,630
Purchase of raw materials 497,150 222,950
Other purchases 14,840,000 14,840,000
Operating lease contracts 4,467,368 5,569,728

25. Related Parties Balances and Transactions

a. The related party transactions during the year were as follows:
Consolidated statement of financial position items:

JD JD JD JD
Accounts receivable 181,382 - 181,382 55,655
Accounts payable * 8,006,476 8,605,370 16,611,846 11,828,394

* The accounts payable mentioned above do not bear any interest and have no defined repayment schedule.

Consolidated statement of income items:
For the Year Ended December 31,
2017 2016
JD JD
Expenses 1,572,279 2,395,760

b. The salaries, bonuses and other benefits of the executive management amounted to JD 1,230,440
for the year ended December 31, 2017 (JD 1,321,553 for the year ended December 31, 2016).
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26. Lawsuits

There are lawsuits held against the Company and its subsidiaries at an amount of JD 24,145,776 represented in legal lawsuits
related to the Company’s operations, and in the opinion of the Company’s management and its legal counsel, the lawsuits
provision booked at an amount of JD 5 Million is sufficient to meet any commitments related to the lawsuits and claims.

27. Liquidity Risks

Liquidity risks, also referred to as funding risk, is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its

obligations.

The Company suffers from a deficit in its working capital as of December 31, 2017 and as of December 31, 2016 as follows:

December 31,

JD JD
Current assets 78,611,024 65,235,500
Less: Current liabilities 100,907,649 72,407,553
(Deficit) in Working Capital (22,296,625) (7,172,053)

The Company manages liquidity risk continuously through managing its cash flows and through the financing from banks, noting
that an amount of JD 16.6 Million of the current liabilities are related to the Company’s related parties as at December 31, 2017
(JD 10.9 Million as at December 31, 2016).

28. Loss per Share for the year

Loss per share is calculated by dividing the net loss for the year over the weighted average common stock and it is calculated

as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2017 2016
JD JD
LOSCSO:L;:;Ze:;;:::;t:rzle tothe (34,482,571) (4,251,005)
Share Share
Weighted Average Common Shares 60,444,460 60,444,460
JD / Share JD /Share
(Loss) per Share (Basic and Diluted) (0.57) (0.0703)

29. The Company’s Future Plan

The Company reported a net loss for the year in an amount of around JD 33.3 million. In addition, the Company has accumulated
losses including the current year's losses of around JD 49.8 Million as of December 31, 2017, which represents 82.3% of the
Company’s paid up capital as of that date after the write off of part of the accumulated losses by around JD 12.4 Million from the
voluntary reserve based on the approved plan by the Company’s Board of Directors and the General Assembly on September
19, 2017. Moreover, there is unused property and equipment in the production of around JD 25.6 Million in the Fuhais factory,
and deferred tax assets of around JD 22.2 Million. In Addition, Company suffers from a deficit in its working capital by around
JD 22.3 million.
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The Company'’s future plan to address its financial position is as follows:

1. Duringits ordinary and extraordinary meetings held on April 19, 2017, the Company’s General Assembly unanimously approved
the Board of Directors’ recommendation to waiver and/or transfer the ownership of around 430 dunums [430 thousand square
meters] from the Company’s land in the Fuhais to the favor of the Fuhais Municipality. This is contingent upon reaching an
agreement between the Company and the Fuhais Municipality regarding the Fuhais land rezoning project and upon issuance
of the decision of the Supreme Planning Council and/or the related competent authorities to approve the project’s land rezoning
plan, its clauses, and expiry of the objection to the decision period. As such, the decision would become irrevocable and
non-objectionable. In return, the Company will be exempted from any fees payable to the Fuhais Municipality for changing
the project’s land nature of use or any financial liabilities due from the Company to the favor of the Fuhais Municipality. This
includes, for example but not limited to, any fees and/or proceeds and/or allowances and/or expenses, or any reimbursements
except for what is agreed on between the Company and the land planning parties. In addition, the Board of Directors shall be
authorized to take the necessary decisions and/or procedures and/or arrangements in order to execute and implement this
recommendation. Moreover, the General Assembly unanimously approved the Board of Directors’ recommendation to waiver
and/or transfer the ownership title of the Company’s lands in the Fuhais area. This approval extends to authorizing the Board of
Directors to determine the buyers and sell the lands for a price that is in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders.
It also includes authorizing the Board of Directors to take the necessary decisions and/or procedures and/or arrangements for
the purpose of executing this recommendation and putting it into action.

2. Opening new markets for exporting cement, which guarantees a higher utilization of the production lines and a higher
profitability.

3. Reducing variable and fixed production costs through streamlining expenditures and through following up on the execution
of the solar energy electrical production plant project in Al Rashadiyeh prior to yearend, in addition to increasing the use of
alternative energy sources.

4. Following up on the labor cost case and obtaining the appropriate approvals.

5. Continuity of selling the unutilized assets including land, real-estate and property and equipment which was initiated at the
beginning of the year 2016 upon receiving the board of directors’ approval.

6. Writing off part of the accumulated losses amount of JD 27 Million through the use of the Company’s statutory reserve as
mentioned in note (33) to the consolidated financial statements.

30. Comparative Figures

The Company adjusted and reclassified some of the comparative figures related to the year 2016 in order to be consistent with

of the year ended December 31, 2017 noting that the reclassification had no effect on the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2017.

31. Risk Management

The Company adopts financial policies for managing the various risks within a specific strategy. Moreover, the Company’s

management controls and monitors risks and performs the optimal strategic allocation of financial assets and financial liabilities.
Risks include interest rate risk, market risk, credit risk, and foreign currency risk.

a. Capital Risk Management
The Company manages its capital to ensure its ability to continue as a going concern and maximize the return to stakeholders
through achieving an optimal balance between equity and debt. Moreover, no change in the Company’s overall policy has

occurred since the prior year.

b. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk, also known as funding risk, represents the difficulty that the Company will encounter in making available the

necessary funds to fulfill its obligations. Moreover, the Company manages its liquidity risk through keeping adequate reserves,
continuously monitoring the expected and actual cash flows, and matching the maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities.
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c.Credit Risk

Credit risk relates to the other party’s inability to meet its contractual obligations leading to the incurrence of losses by the
Company. Moreover, the Company adopts a policy of dealing with creditworthy parties in order to mitigate the financial losses
arising from defaults.

The Company’s financial assets consisting mainly of receivables and other debit balances, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, and cash and cash equivalents do not represent important concentrations of the credit risk.
Furthermore, the debtors are wide spread among the clients’ categories and their geographic areas. Strict credit control is
maintained over the credit limits granted to each customer separately and on a continuous basis, and on the provision for the
un-collected amounts.

All of the Company’s investments are classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The risk of investment in shares relates to the change in the value of the financial instrument as a result of the changes in the
closing prices of shares.

The change in the financial market index, whereby the above securities are traded as of the consolidated financial statements
date, represents a 5% increase or 5% decrease. The following is the impact of the change on the Company’s owners’ equity.

2017 2016

JD JD
5% Increase 8,835 9,404
5% (Decrease) (8,835) (9,404)

d.Market Risk

Market risk is the loss in value resulting from the change in market prices such as interest rate, foreign currency exchange rate,
and equity instruments prices, and consequently, the change in the fair value of the financial instruments cash flows on-and
off-the consolidated statement of financial position.

1. Currency Risk
The Company’s major transactions are in Jordanian Dinar, US Dollar, and Euro.

Currency risk relates to the changes in the prices of currencies in connection with foreign currency payments. As the Jordanian
Dinar (the functional currency of the Company) is pegged to the US Dollar, the Company’s management believes that the foreign
currency risk is immaterial.

2.Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of change in the value of the financial instrument due to changes in market interest rates.

Moreover, the Company continuously manages its exposure to interest rate risk and considers the various scenarios such as
refinancing, renewal of the present positions, and alternative financing.

The below-mentioned sensitivity analysis is determined according to the exposure to interest rate risk related to the lending
banks as of the consolidated financial statements date. Moreover, the analysis has been prepared assuming that the liability
amount at the consolidated financial statements date was outstanding during the whole year. An increase or decrease of half
a percentage point (0.5%) is used, representing the evaluation of the Company’s management of the potential and acceptable
change at market interest rates:

2017 2016

JD JD

0.5% Increase 2,000,410 1,259,765
0.5% Decrease (2,000,410) (1,259,765)
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32. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

32.a New and revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the financial statements
The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, have

been adopted in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
The Company has applied these amendments for the first time in the current year. The amendments clarify how an entity should

evaluate whether there will be sufficient future taxable profits against which it can utilize a deductible temporary difference.

The application of these amendments has had no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
The Company has applied these amendments for the first time in the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide

disclosures that enable users of the consolidated financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

The Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities consist of borrowings note (18). A reconciliation between the opening
and closing balances of these item is provided in note (18). The Company has disclosed comparative information for the prior
year. The application of these amendments has had no impact on the Company’s Consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle — Amendments to IFRS 12
The Group has applied the amendments to IFRS 12 included in the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle for the

first time in the current year. The other amendments included in this package are not yet mandatorily effective and they have not
been early adopted by the Group (see note 3.2).

IFRS 12 states that an entity need not provide summarized financial information for interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures that are classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale. The amendments clarify that this
is the only concession from the disclosure requirements of IFRS 12 for such interests.

The application of these amendments has had no effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as none of the Group’s
interests in these entities are classified, or included in a disposal group that is classified, as held for sale.

32. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (Continued)
32.b. New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective

The Company has not yet applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Effective for annual

New and revised IFRSs periods beginning
on or after

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 — 2016 Cycle amending IFRS 1 and IAS 28. January 1, 2018

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration January 1, 2018

The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of transactions where:

e there is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign currency;

e the entity recognises a prepayment asset or a deferred income liability in respect of that
consideration, in advance of the recognition of the related asset, expense or income; and the
prepayment asset or deferred income liability is non-monetary.
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Amendments to IFRS 2 Share Based Payment regarding classification and measurement of January 1, 2018
share based payment transactions.

Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Relating to the different effective dates of IFRS 9 January 1, 2018
and the forthcoming new insurance contracts standard.

Amendments to IAS 40 Investment Property: Amends paragraph 57 to state that an entity shall January 1, 2018
transfer a property to, or from, investment property when, and only when, there is evidence of

a change in use. A change of use occurs if property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition

of investment property. A change in management’s intentions for the use of a property by itself

does not constitute evidence of a change in use. The paragraph has been amended to state that

the list of examples therein is non-exhaustive.

Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to clarify three aspects of 1 January 2018
the standard (identifying performance obligations, principal versus agent considerations, and
licensing) and to provide some transition relief for modified contracts and completed contracts.

32. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (Continued)
32.b New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Effective for
New and revised IFRSs annual periods
beginning on or after

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (revised versions in 2009, 2010, 2013 and 2014) (a) January 1, 2018

IFRS 9issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS
9 was subsequently amended in October 2010 to include requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities and for derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial assets
and b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

A finalised version of IFRS 9 which contains accounting requirements for financial instruments, replacing IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The standard contains requirements in the following areas:

Classification and measurement: Financial assets are classified by reference to the business model within which they
are held and their contractual cash flow characteristics. The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ category for certain debt instruments. Financial liabilities are classified in a similar manner to under
IAS 39, however there are differences in the requirements applying to the measurement of an entity’s own credit risk.
Impairment: The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces an ‘expected credit loss’ model for the measurement of the impairment of
financial assets, so it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before a credit loss is recognised

Hedge accounting: Introduces a new hedge accounting model that is designed to be more closely aligned with how entities
undertake risk management activities when hedging financial and non-financial risk exposures.

Derecognition: The requirements for the derecognition of financial assets and liabilities are carried forward from IAS 39.

The primary impact on the Company relates to the provisioning for future credit losses on its financial assets and the requirement
of certain additional disclosures.

The Company will adopt it from the effective date of January 1, 2018; apply it retrospectively and recognize the cumulative
effect of initially applying this standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as of January 1, 2018.

The Company is continuing to analyze the impact of the changes and currently does not consider it likely to have a major
impact on its adoption. This assessment is based on currently available information and is subject to changes that may arise
when the Company presents its first consolidated interim financial information as on March 31, 2018 that includes the effects
of it application from the effective date.
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32. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (Continued)
32.b New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Effective for annual

periods beginning
New and revised IFRSs on or after

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers January 1, 2018

In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which established a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18
Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

¢ Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

e Step 2: |dentify the performance obligations in the contract.

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.
e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added
in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

Impact assessment of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Management has identified the below areas where key revenue recognition and other accounting changes under IFRS 15 will

have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Subsidized handsets

The Company provides subsidized handsets to its customers and IFRS 15 requires entities to allocate a contract’s transaction
price to each performance obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling price. This will result in a greater amount of
revenue on subsidized handsets up-front, a difference between the reported revenue and the amount billed and decrease the

average revenue per user for ongoing services.

Portfolio accounting

The Company enters into contracts with customers, which have similar characteristics. Under IFRS 15, an entity can choose to
apply it to a portfolio of contracts or performance obligations with similar characteristics if the outcome isn’t materially different
than contract-by-contract accounting by:

An evaluation of which items constitute a portfolio considering, for example, the impact of different offerings, periods of time,
geographic locations and contract modifications;

An assessment, on an ongoing basis, whether the portfolio approach gives a materially different result;

Exercise of judgement in determining when the portfolio approach may be appropriate, including considering whether any

customer-specific agreements would be eligible.
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32. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (Continued)
32.b New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Effective for annual

New and revised IFRSs periods beginning
on or after
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued) January 1, 2018

Upgrade rights

The Company offers early upgrade rights for additional services. This will require the Company to determine the appropriate
accounting, including whether a material right has been granted to the customer, if the right affects the transaction price, if
modification accounting applies or if waived amounts are an incentive to enter into a new contract. A material right is an option
to acquire additional goods or services at a price that does not reflect the good’s or service’s stand-alone selling price and is

considered a separate performance obligation.

Customer retention discounts

Even if customer retention discounts aren’t explicit in the contract, customary business practice could mean that fixed
consideration is, in substance, variable. Alternatively, such discounts could be viewed as contract modifications. IFRS 15 requires
an assessment as to whether the discount is variable consideration or a contract modification. This will require judgement and
may impact the timing of revenue recognition. IFRS 15 requires an assessment as to whether promotional offers to current
customers are contract modifications or marketing transactions and set up processes and systems capable of tracking and

monitoring all discounts, concessions and promotional offers granted to customers.

Significant financing component
If a customer can pay for purchased equipment over a period along with network services, under IFRS 15 judgement is required to
determine if the contract includes a significant financing component. If the contract includes a significant financing component,

then the transaction price must be adjusted to reflect the time value of money.

Commissions and other contract costs

Under IFRS 15, certain incremental costs incurred in acquiring a contract with a customer will be deferred on the statement
of financial position and amortised as revenue is recognised under the related contract; this will generally lead to the later
recognition of charges for some commissions payable to third party dealers and employees. However, a company may choose to

expense contract acquisition costs if the amortization period of the resulting asset is one year or less.

Transition options
IFRS 15 may be adopted retrospectively, by restating comparatives and adjusting retained earnings at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period. — Alternatively, IFRS 15 may be adopted as of the application date, by adjusting retained earnings

at the beginning of the first reporting year (the cumulative effect approach).

The Company intends to adopt the standard using the cumulative effect approach, which means that the Company will recognize
the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings of the
annual reporting period that includes the date of initial application. The Company is continuing to analyze the impact of the
changes and its impact will be disclosed in the first interim financial information as of March 31, 2018 that includes the effects

of it application from the effective date.
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32. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (Continued)
32.b New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Effective for
New and revised IFRSs annual periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Relating to prepayment features with January 1, 2019
negative compensation. This amends the existing requirements in IFRS 9 regarding

termination rights in order to allow measurement at amortized cost (or, depending on the

business model, at fair value through other comprehensive income) even in the case of

negative compensation payments.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to disclosures about the When IFRS 9 is first applied
initial application of IFRS 9.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to the additional hedge accounting When IFRS 9 is first applied
disclosures (and consequential amendments) resulting from the introduction of the hedge
accounting chapter in IFRS 9.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle amending IFRS 3, IFRS 11, January 1, 2019
IAS 12 and IAS 23.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 1, 2019
The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income
tax treatments under |AS 12. It specifically considers:
e Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively;
e Assumptions for taxation authorities’ examinations;
e The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates; and The effect of changes in facts and circumstances.

Amendments to IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures: Relating to long-term January 1, 2019
interests in associates and joint ventures. These amendments clarify that an entity applies

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture that

form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the equity

method is not applied.
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32. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (Continued)
32.b New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

New and revised IFRSs Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after

IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2019
IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognise, measure, present and disclose leases. The

standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and

liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a

low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16’s approach to

lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17.

IFRS 16 results in lessees accounting for most leases within the scope of the standard in a manner
similar to the way in which finance leases are currently accounted for under IAS 17 ‘Leases’.
Lessees will recognise a ‘right of use’ asset and a corresponding financial liability on the balance
sheet. The asset will be amortised over the length of the lease and the financial liability measured
at amortised cost. Lessor accounting remains substantially the same as in IAS 17.

Impact assessment of IFRS 16 Leases
The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of IFRS 16 on the Company’s Consolidated
financial statements.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2021
IFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current fulfillment value and provides

a more uniform measurement and presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These

requirements are designed to achieve the goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting for

insurance contracts. IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts as of 1 January 2021.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates  Effective date deferred
and Joint Ventures (2011) relating to the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from and  indefinitely. Adoption is
investor to its associate or joint venture. still permitted.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these new standards, interpretations and amendments,
except for IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 as highlighted in previous paragraphs, may have no material impact on the financial
statements of the Company in the period of initial application.

Management anticipates that IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 will be adopted in the Company’s Consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning January 1, 2018 and that IFRS 16 will be adopted in the Company’s financial statements for the annual
period beginning January 1, 2019.

33. Subsequent Event
The Board of Director’s approval and recommendation was granted to write off part of the accumulated losses amount of JD
27 Million through the use of the Company’s statutory reserve on January 29, 2018, the Decision is subject to the General

Assembly’s approval.
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34. Fair Value Hierarchy

a. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Continuously Determined at Fair Value

Some of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are presented at fair value at the end of each financial period.
The following table provides information about the methods used to determine the fair value of the financial assets and financial

liabilities (Valuation Methods and Inputs Used):

Fair Value

December 31,

Fair
Value
Level

Financial Assets / Liabilities 2017 2016

Financial assets at fair value through

comprehensive:

) : ' First
Shares with available market prices 176,695 188,087 Level
Total Financial Assets at Fair Value 176,695 188,087

Evaluation
Method
and Inputs
Used

Relation between
Significant
Intangible Inputs

Significant
Intangible
Inputs

Listed prices in
financial markets N/A N/A

There are no transfers between the first and second level during the year ended December 31, 2017 and for the year ended

December 31, 2016.
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